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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
 

EASTERN DIVISION
 

IN RE: CLOZAPINE ANTITRUST ) MDL Docket No. 874 
LITIGATION ) 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) 

No. 90 C 6412 

Consolidated for Pretrial 
Proceedings With the Following 
Actions That Have Been Trans­
ferred from the Southern 
District of New York: 

This Document Relates To 
Docket Numbers 90 Civ. 8055, 

) 
) 90 Civ. 7724, 8055, 8060, 

8060, 8062-8065, 8067, 8069, ) 8062-8065, 8067, 8069, 8071, 
8071, 8073-8077, 8079-8082, ) 8073-8077, 8079-8082, 8084, 
8084,8086-8087,8089,8092; ) 8086-8087, 8089, 8092; 
91 civ. 0244, 0921, 1043, ) 91 civ. 0244, 0921, 1043, 
1165, 1219-1220, 1392, 1673, ) 1165,1219-1220,1392,1673, 
1813-1814
 )

)
)
) 

1813-1814
 

Honorable Harry D. Leinenweber 

DE7ENDANT CARBMARK INC.'S
 
SUPPLEMEII'1'AL KBHORAJlDUX OP LAW
 

IN SUPPORT OP ITS MOTION TO DISMISS
 

Defendant Caremark Inc. ("Caremark") respectfully sub­

mits this supplemental memorandum of law in support of its motion 

to dismiss the complaints of the Statesll in these consolidated 

proceedings for their failure to state a claim upon which relief 

can be granted. This motion was fully briefed before the u.s. 

District court for the Southern District of New York at the time 

these actions were transferred to this Court for consolidation 

1/ The thirty-three states, commonwealths and the District of 
Columbia which have filed actions against Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corp. ("Sandoz·) and Caremark are collectively referred to herein 
as "the States. ­



under MOL Docket No. 874. This memorandum supplements Caremark's 

two memoranda previously filed in the U.S. District Court for the 

Southern District of New York on January 28, 1991, and April 5, 

1991, with relevant case authority decided by this Court and the 

U.S. Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit. 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

The states attempt in their First and Second Claims for 

Relief to implicate Caremark in tying and price fixing conspira­

cies in violation of section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, 

based upon Caremark's participation in Sandoz' CLOZARIL~ Patient 

Management systemSm (IICPMS II ).Y Because a plain reading of the 

states' allegations is that Caremark is merely Sandoz' agent, the 

States' complaints fail to aver a cognizable antitrust conspiracy 

between Sandoz and Caremark. Recognizing this defect, the States 

attempt to salvage at least their tying claim by suggesting an 

illegal agreement among Sandoz and CLOZARIL· patients. The 

states' most recent theory, however, is as flawed as the original; 

purported victims of an alleged restraint of trade cannot satisfy 

the concerted action requirement of a Section 1 claim. The 

States' Third Claim for Relief, which purports to allege a Section 

2 monopolization claim, also should be dismissed as to Caremark 

because this claim is against Sandoz alone. For these reasons, 

1/ For a more thorough discussion of the factual background of 
this litigation, Caremark refers the Court to its Memorandu. of 
Points and Authorities Supporting Its Motion to Dismiss the 
states' Actions ("Opening Mem.") filed on January 28, 1991, in the 
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York 
and its Preliainary Report filed with this Court on April 30, 
1991. 
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and for the reasons discussed in the memoranda previously filed by 

Caremark, this Court should dismiss the States' complaints. lI 

ARGUMENT 

I 

THE STATES FAIL TO PLEAD THE
 
THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS FOR A CLAIM
 
UNDER SECTION 1 OF THE SHERMAN ACT
 

The States allege that Sandoz and Caremark have
 

"illegally tied the sale of the drug clozapine (tying product) to 

blood drawing, case administration, data base, dispensing, and 

laboratory services (tied products)" and have "engaged in a ver­

tical price fixing agreement relating to the sale of the drug 

C1ozari1, blood drawing, case administration, data base, dispens­

ing, and laboratory services in violation of Section 1 of the 

Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1. It (Comp1.!! 54 and 60)!I Caremark's 

argument for dismissal developed fully in its prior memoranda is 

straightforward: (1) section 1 of the Sherman Act proscribes only 

1/ The states are incorrect in their assertion that the Federal 
Rules of civil Procedure merely require "that the complaint give 
the defendant 'fair notice of what the plaintiff's claim is ••• 
• '" (states' Response to Caremark's Motion to Dismiss ("states' 
Response") at 3) This court has held that "[a] complaint must 
contain direct or inferential allegations of every material 
element necessary to state a legal theory of relief." Devilbiss 
v. Arvid C. Walberg & Co., No. 83 C 1133, slip Ope at 3 (N.D. Ill. 
1986) (Leinenweber, J.) (citing Car Carriers. Inc. v. Ford Motor 
Co., 745 F.2d 1101, 1106 (7th Cir. 1984), cert. denied, 410 U.S. 
1054 (1985», attached hereto as Exhibit 1. Moreover, on a motion 
to dismiss, a court is not bound by the legal characterizations 
that a plaintiff attributes to the facts. RepUblic Steel Corp. v. 
Pennsylvania Engineering Corp., 785 F.2d 174, 182-83 (7th Cir. 
1986). 

iI All citations are to the complaint filed by the State of 
Minnesota. 
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those restraints of trade achieved through concerted conduct: (2) 

under the Sherman Act, an agent is incapable of engaging in 

illegal concerted action with its principal: (3) the States' alle­

gat ions establish that Caremark is an agent of Sandoz with respect 

to the sale and distribution of CLOZARIL*; and therefore, (4) 

Caremark's participation in CPMS cannot as a matter of law violate 

section 1 of the Sherman Act. (See Caremark's Opening Mem. at 15­

18; Caremark's Reply Memorandum In Support of Its Motion to 

Dismiss ("Reply Mem.") at 2-9) 

The States alternative theory -- that CLOZARIL~ patients 

are parties to a purportedly unlawful agreement -- also fails 

because the victim of an alleged restraint of trade cannot be a 

co-conspirator to such a restraint. Moreover, the tying claim 

fails for the independent reason that the states do not allege 

that there is a substantial danger that either Caremark or Sandoz 

will attain market power in the "tied" services, a necessary alle­

gat ion according to the well-established precedent of this 

Circuit. Finally, the States' price fixing claim fails for the 

additional reason that the States do not allege that Caremark 

agreed to adhere to Sandoz' suggested price or that Sandoz sought 

such an agreement. 

A.	 The states' Allegations Establish That Caremark Is 
Sandoz' Agent and Incapable of Conspiring With Sandoz 
Within the Meaning of the Sherman Act 

The States' complaints fail under Section 1 ot the 

Sherman Act because Caremark, as Sandoz' agent, is incapable of 

engaging in an antitrust conspiracy. See Morrison v. Murray 
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Biscuit Co., 797 F.2d 1430, 1436-38 (7th Cir. 1986); Illinois 

Corporate Travel, Inc. v. American Airlines. Inc., No, 85 C 07079, 

slip op. at 5 (N.D. 111.), aff'd, 806 F.2d 722 (7th Cir. 1986), 

attached hereto as Exhibit 2. ("(R]estraints imposed on indi­

viduals who do not possess entrepreneurial indicia [~, agents] 

are outside the scope of Section 1."). Because the States fail to 

plead concerted action, their Section 1 claims must be dismissed. 

(See also opening Mem. at 16-18; Reply Mem. at 7-9) 

Although the States argue that "Sandoz and Caremark are 

two separate entities that unreasonably restrained trade" (States' 

Response at 20), their conduct is "concerted" within the meaning 

of section 1 only if their relationship is one of independence, 

rather than agency. Thus, to claim that Caremark engaged in ille­

gal concerted action under Section 1 of the Sherman Act, the 

States must allege facts which establish that Caremark is truly 

independent from Sandoz and entrepreneurial with respect to the 

distribution of CLOZARIL·. See Illinois corporate Travel. Inc. v. 

American Airlines. Inc., supra, No. 85 C 07079, slip Ope at 5 

(R[W]hile [a firm may] operat[e] as an independent business entity 

generally, it [may] not possess sufficient independence with 

respect to the sale[s] [at issue] to qualify as a reseller under 

antitrust analysis.-). 

In Illinois Corporate Travel. Inc. V. American Airlines. 

~, 806 F.2d 722 (7th Cir. 1986), the Seventh Circuit affirmed 

the order of the district court denying a preliminary injunction 

and held that this requisite independence did not exist between a 

travel agency company and an airline. The Court held that with 
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respect to the sale of airline tickets for major airlines, the 

travel agency was not an independent actor but merely an lIagent ll 

whose prices could lawfully be fixed by the airlines. Id. at 725. 

The Court reasoned that the "relation [between the plaintiff and 

the airline] is a genuine agency [because] (t]ravel service opera­

tors do not resell air travel." Id. 

Here, as in Illinois Corporate Travel, an agency rela­

tionship exists between Sandoz and Carernark. The necessary 

independence found lacking in Illinois Corporate Travel would 

exist between Sandoz and Caremark only if Caremark were a reseller 

of CLOZARIL*. The States' pleadings, however, clearly establish 

that Caremark is not a reseller of CLOZARIL*. The States acknowl­

edge that Caremark merely "receives a fee from Sandoz for its 

services under CPMS." (Compl., 41) It is Sandoz and not 

Caremark who retains the purchase price and the attendant profits 

of CPMS. (Compl.! 40) Because the States admit that Sandoz 

reimburses Caremark for it CPMS services and that Caremark does 

not retain the purchase price for the sale of CLOZARIL· therapy, 

Caremark is not a reseller.~ Consequently, as in Illinois 

Corporate Travel, Sandoz and Caremark are not economically inde­

pendent actors capable of engaging in concerted action that vio­

lates section 1 of the Sherman Act. Because the States plead an 

2/ As Caremark argued in its opening and reply .emoranda, reten­
tion of receipts and profits is a clear indicia of agency. See 
Ally Gargano/MCA Advertising. Ltd. v. Cooke Properties, 1989-2 
Trade Cas. (CCH) ! 68,817, 62,277 (S.D.N.Y.) ("In view of the 
retention of profits provision it is difficult to characterize 
MCA's role with respect to subleasing as remotely that of 
'entrepreneur' or 'independent businessman. I") (See Caremark's 
Reply Mem. at 8) 
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agency relationship that is immune from antitrust liability under 

section 1 of the Sherman Act, this Court should dismiss the 

States' First and Second Claims for Relief.§! 

B.	 Patient Participation In CPMS Does Not Constitute an 
"Agreement" Under Section One of the Sherman Act 

Recognizing their pleading infirmities, the States 

retreat from their reliance on Caremark as a "co-conspirator." 

(See Caremark's Reply Mem. at 2, citing the States' Response at 

18-19) Instead, the States concoct an alternative theory of 

antitrust conspiracy claiming that CLOZARIL* patients themselves 

and Sandoz form the requisite contract, combination or conspiracy. 

The States now assert that the concerted action "requirement is 

met when a patient (or payor) agreed [sic] to the purchase of 

CPMS." (states' Response at 19) As Caremark urged in its reply 

memorandum, this theory is not tenable in law or in logic. The 

action of a single entity imposing a tying arrangement on its 

customers is not proscribed by Section 1 of the Sherman Act. 

McKenzie v. Mercy Hospital of Independence, 854 F.2d 365, 368 

(lOth Cir. 1988). (~Caremark's Reply Mem. at 4) That -the 

buyer took both products in a package against his will negates the 

existence of a 'contract, combination, or conspiracy.'" Will v. 

§/ As Care.ark argued in its reply memorandum, dismissal under 
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6) is proper because the 
states' pleadings establish that Caremark is Sandoz' agent. 
(Caremark's Reply Mem. at 9, citing North American Produce v. Hi£k 
Penachio Co., 705 F. Supp. 746, 750 (E.D.N.Y. 1988) (Dismissal of 
section 1 claim under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) was 
proper because "from plaintiff's own allegations th[e] (c]ourt 
conclude{d] that for antitrust purposes, plaintiff was defendant's 
agent.") (emphasis added). 

7
 



Comprehensive Accounting Corp., 776 F.2d 665, 669 (7th Cir. 1985), 

cert. denied, 475 U.S. 1129 (1986).11 See generally United States 

v. Nasser, 476 F.2d 1111, 1118-20 (7th Cir. 1973) (alleged victim 

cannot be co-conspirator unless victim is subject to liability 

under the statute at issue). Because the States have failed to 

allege concerted action between parties capable of an antitrust 

conspiracy, this Court should dismiss their claims under Section 

1. 

C.	 The Proscription on Vertical Price Restraints Does Not 
Apply to the Sandoz-Caremark Relationship 

The States' recognition that Caremark is Sandoz' agent 

similarly defeats their Section 1 price fixing claim. The prohi­

bition on vertical price agreements does not apply to restrictions 

on the price to be charged by one who is in reality an agent of, 

not a buyer from, the manufacturer. Morrison V. Murray Biscuits, 

supra, 797 F.2d at 1426 (citing united States V. General Electric 

Co., 272 U.S. 476 (1926». Accordingly, as Sandoz' agent in the 

distribution of CLOZARIL·, Caremark is legally incapable of 

conspiring to maintain resale prices. (See also Caremark's 

opening Mea. at 20-22 and Reply Mem. at 6-9) 

11 To the extent that the Seventh Circuit's decision in Will V. 
Comprehensive Accounting Corp., supra, cites Perma Life Mufflers, 
~ v. International Parts Corp., 392 U.S. 134 (1968), overruled 
in part, ~opperweld Corp. v. Independence Tube Corp., 467 U.S. 752 
(1984), for the principle that "unwilling compliance" satisfies 
the joint actions requirement of Section 1, that holding has been 
effectively overruled by Fisher v. City of Berkeley, 475 U.S. 260, 
267 (1986) ("[A] restraint imposed unilaterally ••• does not 
become concerted action within the meaning of [Section 1 of the 
Sherman Act] simply because it has a coercive effect upon the 
parties who must obey."). 
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D.	 The States Have Failed to Allege That a Substantial 
Danger Exists That Either Sandoz or Caremark will 
Acquire Market Power in the Alleged Tied Service Markets 

As Caremark argued in its other memoranda, to state a 

claim for tying, the States must allege that the tie forecloses a 

substantial volume of commerce in the market for the tied product. 

(See Caremark1s Opening Mem. at 18-20; Caremark's Reply Mem. at 6 

n.5) The case authority established by this circuit, however, 

places an even greater burden on plaintiffs alleging an unlawful 

tying arrangement: "One of the threshold criteria the plaintiff 

must satisfy . . . is that there is a sUbstantial danger that the 

tying seller will acquire market power in the tied product 

market. II will v . Comprehensive Accounting Co., supra, 776 F. 2d at 

674 (emphasis added) (quoting Carl Sandburg Village Condominium 

Ass1n No.1 v. First Condominium Development Co., 758 F.2d 203, 

210 (7th Cir. 1985». Accordingly, the States must allege facts 

which establish a substantial danger that either Sandoz or 

Caremark will acquire market power in the alleged tied services. 

The States merely conclude that R[t]he Clozaril/CPMS tie 

forecloses competition in the markets for blood drawing, case 

administration, data base, dispensing, or laboratory services." 

(Compl. ! 46) The states fail to allege that either Sandoz or 

caremark currently has or will acquire market power in any of 

those services. Because the States fail to meet this threshold 

pleading requirement, this court should dismiss their tying 

claims. 
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E.	 The states Fail to Plead Facts to Support Their 
Vertical Price Fixing Claim 

The Seventh Circuit adheres, as it must, to the Supre~e 

Court doctrine that a manufacturer may suggest a resale price and 

that a distributor may freely conform to such price. See,~, 

Jack Walters & Sons Corp. v. Morton Building. Inc., 737 F.2d 698 

(7th Cir. ), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 1018 (1984); Skokie Gold 

Standard Liquor v. Joseph E. Seagram & Sons, 661 F. Supp. 1311 

(N.D. Ill. 1986). Thus, to state a claim for resale price mainte­

nance under Section 1 of the Sherman Act, the States must allege 

something more than Sandoz' suggestion of a "resale" price and 

Caremark's adherence to such a price. The States must allege 

facts which would exclude the possibility that Sandoz and Caremark 

were acting independently. Id. at 1318; Magid Manufacturing Co. 

v. U.S.D. Corp., 654 F. Supp. 325, 328 (N.D. Ill. 1987). The 

states merely conclude that "Sandoz sets the resale price." 

(states' Response at 25) The States' complaints allege no facts 

which would establish that Caremark communicated its acquiescence 

or agreement to a resale price, and that such agreement was sought 

by Sandoz. Accordingly, the States' price fixing allegations 

should be dismissed. 1I (See Reply Hem. at 9-10) 

11 Dismissal of the resale price fixing claim is proper under 
Federal Rule of civil Procedure l2(b) (6). See Char Crews. Inc. v. 
Christofle Silver. Inc., No. 81 C 3940, slip Ope at 2 (N.D. Ill. 
1982), attached hereto as Exhibit 3. ("General allegations that 
defendants conspired together . • • are not sufficient to state a 
cause of action [for resale price maintenance.] ••• [G]eneral 
allegations of conspiracy are merely legal conclusions, and must 
be supported with allegations of some specific facts tending to 
show the existence of the alleged conspiracy.") (emphasis added). 
~ also cayman Exploration Corp. V. United Gas Pipe Line Corp., 
873 F.2d 1357, 1360 (10th eire 1989) ("To adequately state a 
vertical price fixing violation ('resale price maintenance'), 
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II 

THE STATES HAVE NOT PLEADED A 
MONOPOLIZATION CLAIM AGAINST CAREMARK 

The States' monopolization claim is against Sandoz and 

Sandoz alone: 

Sandoz's monopolization consists of (1) lever­
aging its monopoly power over clozapine to 
gain competitive advantage in the markets for 
blood drawing, case administration, data base, 
dispensing, and laboratory services, and (2) 
extending and maintaining its monopoly power 
over clozapine beyond its current five year 
exclusive marketing period. 

(Compl. ! 67; emphasis added) The States have failed to name 

Caremark as a monopolist and have not alleged that Caremark 

engaged in any monopolistic conduct. V Because it "alleges no 

specific act or conduct on the part of" Caremark, the States' 

Third Claim for Relief should be dismissed as to Caremark. See 

potter v. Clark, 497 F.2d 1206, 1207 (7th Cir. 1974). 

plaintiff must allege at least some facts which would support an 
inference that the parties have agreed that one will set the price 
at which the other will resell the product or service to third 
parties.") (emphasis added in part). 

2/ Confronted with this obvious deficiency, the States advance 
an entirely new claim against Caremark. For the first time in 
their Response, they contend that "Caremark has conspired with 
Sandoz to monopolize the market for clozapine." (States' Response 
at 25) This covert attempt by the States to amend their 
complaints must fail. This Court has held that "[i]f a complaint 
is insufficient it may not be amended by briefs in opposition to 
the motion to dismiss." Devilbiss v. Arvid C. Walberg' Co., 
supra, No. 83 C 1133, slip Opt at 3; ~ AlI2 Car Carriers. Inc. 
V. Ford Motor Co., supra, 745 F.2d at 1107 ("[I]t is axiomatic 
that the co~laint may not be amended by the briefs in opposition 
to a motion to dismiss."). 
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CONCLUSION
 

For these reasons, and for all the reasons set forth in 

its opening and reply memoranda, Caremark respectfully moves this 

Court for an order dismissing the States' complaints, and each of 

them, for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be 

granted. 

Dated this 3rd day of June, 1991. 

Michael 
Michael 
Michael J. Abernathy 
BELL, BOYD & LLOYD 
Three First National Plaza 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 372-1121 

Attorneys for Defendant 
CAREMARK INC. 
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Page l·~,;-Services of Mead Data Central, Inc. 

THE DEVILBISS COMPANY, a D1vision of ChamptOn Spark Plug 
Company, a Delaware Corporatlon, Pla1ntiff, v. ARVID C. 

WALBERG ~ CO., an IllinoiS Corporation, Cefendant 

NO. 83 C "33 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
 
ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION
 

SUp OpinIon 

February 27, 1986 

OPINIONBY: LEINENWEBER 

OPINION: MEMORANDUM Of OPINION AND ORDER 

HARRY D. LEINENWEBER, judge 

Counter/pla1ntiff, ArVid C. Walberg ~ Co, ("Walberg"), fUed an amended 
counterclail Count I seek1ng 58000 for engineering time 1t was forced to expend 
as a result Of the inferior construction of two spray booths it had purchased
frolll counter/defendant, The DeVUbiss Company ("DeVilbiSS"), for a customer 
under its purchase order No. 04127. 

DeVilbiSS has moved for summary judgment supported by the depOSition of Arvid 
C. walberg, a prinClpal of walberg, taken on December 14, 1983, and a series of 
letters between the parties identified in the depOsition. 

ThiS saH 1ssue was prev10usly before the court on a Illation for summary 
jUdg.ent whiCh was denied on August 30, 1983. The basis of that ruling was the 
existence at that time of a question of fact whether the parties had 1ntended an 
agreelent to split custoler's back Charges of $7319.30 to encompass the $8000 
walberg seeks. 

Exh1bits A, Band C Indicate that during the spring of 1982 Walberg and 
DeVllb1ss had a dispute over back charges being lIade agatnst Walberg by 1U 
custo.er. At that tiMe, walberg was clatllng $7319.30 reiMburse.ent Mhtle 
DeVilbiSS Nas Offering 51580.25. 

Apparently, through negotiations aver the telephone 1n August, 1983, the 
parties agreed that they would "equally share the respons1tl1l1 ty 1n the matter" 
and accept the sum of $3659.65 each. (Ex. D corresponOence between DeVilbiss and 
walberg, dated 9/7/82) DeVilbiss' share was passed on to walberg in the fori of 
a credit to its account Ntth DeV1lblSS, leav1ng a balance due of 514,316.35. To 
re.ove any doubt that walberg understood thiS, It wrote DeVllb1ss on Septeaber 
17, 1982 (Ex. EJ aCknowledg1ng DeV1lbiss' letter of SepteMber 7, 1982 and 
Indicating payment of the account was delayed because Walberg "was a li ttle 
short of cash.- The tlalance was not disputed. 

Walberg proceeded to lake a ·payment on account· of 61000 on Decelber 9, 
1982. (Ex. f) 

On Januarv 19, 1983, DeVilbiss sent Walberg a dunn1ng letter clearly

referring to walberg'S purchase order No. 04127 and an ·unpaid balance on
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[this] account in the amount of 513,316.35." (Ex. G) walberg responded on 
January 26, 1983 apologetically adv1s1ng that It had "not been able to ratse 
funds as yet to clear up our old obl1gations." lEx. H) 

DeVIlbiss contends, inter alia, on the basis of the foregoIng, an account 
stated was created between the part1es ~hICh forecloses Walberg'S claIm of 58000 
credit on th1s same account. 

~alberg contends first, that the court order of September 30, 1983 was final 
and appealable because of an order, dated September 14,1983, finding the 
jUdgment in favor of DeV11b1ss of '13,316.25 final and appealable; second, that 
DeVIlbiss' ra1sing of account stated 1s not timely; and thIrd, in any event, it 
is a question of fact. More 1mportantly, walberg has not dIsputed any of the 
depOSItIon references or exhibits and has supplied no add1tional references or 
exhibits. 

In Counts III and IV of the counterclaim, Walberg alleges that DeV11biss and 
Champ10n Spark Plug commenced a d1rect attack agaInst walberg to drive it into 
bankruptcy and out of business. Allegedly, the attack was executed through the 
following acts: (.') manufacturing substandard exhaust plenum cha.bers for use by
Walberg as a component part of a process bearing Walberg'S na.e; (2) pub11cat1on 
through its agents of slander; (3) breach of an agreellent to test a Walberg
product; and (4) sale of competing products to mutual distr1butors and customers 
at unfairly low prices. Count III alleges that these acts constitute "unfalr 
trade and unfa1r competltion" and cause irreparable damage. Count IV alleges 
these acts were 1n restraint of trade and thereby violated Sees. 1 and 2 af the 
Sherlllan Act, 15 U.S.C. S1 and 2, and Sees. 4, 7 and 16 of the Clayton Act, 15 
U.S.C. S1S, 18 and 26A. DeVllbiss has .oved to dism1ss on the ground that Counts 
III and IV fail to state any cla1m upon which relief could be granted. 

DISCUSSION 

I. PLAINTIFF'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON COUNT I OF THE COUNTERCLAIM 

The order of September 14, 1983 rendered only the jUdgment In favor of 
DeVilb1ss for $13,316 final. The balance of the case under Rule 54(b), 
Fed.R.Clv.P., includlng walberg's counterclaim, (which was subsequently 
amended), is not final ind is subject to revls10n at any t1me prl0r to flnal 
ad j ud 1cat i on • 

DeVilbiss' _ot10n for su.~ary judgment was ln response to plalnt1ff's amended 
counterclai. and DeVllb1ss 1s within its rights to raise any defense 1t .1ght 
have at the time the pleading 1s filed. Rule 56, Fed.R.Clv.P. Even if Walberg
had not filed an amended counterclaiM, Nhere there ls an expanded record such as 
ls the case here, a party .av renew its 1I0Uon for sUllmary judg.ent. I<lrbV Y. P. 
R. Mallory & Co., Inc., 489 F.2d 904, 913 (7th Cir. 1973). 

Lastly, Yaloerg claims that account stated ls a questlon of fact. However, 
the existence of an account stated 1s a questlon of fact 11ke any other factual 
issue. Under sOle cirCUMstances its existence or absence can be one of law. 

An -account stated" ls an agreellent between parties to previOUS transactions 
that the account represent1ng the balance due 1s correct, With a pro.lse, 
express or 1.plied, that the debtor shall pay the full amount of the ag reed 
balance. LaGrange Metal PrOducts V. Pettlbone Mulliken, 106 111.App.3d 1046, 
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436, N.E.2d 645,651,62 Ill. Dec. 619,625 (1st Dist. 19821. Here, Walberg 
ac~nowledged In writIng on two occasions that DeVilbiss' claIm of balance due on 
lts purchase oroer No. 04127 was correct. (Exs. E &. HI In addition, he made 
"payment on account" of $'000 on December 9, 1982. (Ex. Fl 

Since all of walberg I s engIneering work was done on account No. 04127 and was 
completed prior to January 18, 1982 (Ex. C, p.4, enumerated P11l, walberg 
obviously had knowledge of its potential claim at the tIMe It wrote ExhIbits E & 
H and made ttle payment. (Ex. Fl Therefore, there are no Issues of fact over the 
existence of the account stated. 

Walberg has not sought to dIspute any of the foregOing, being content to rest 
on its legal arguments. 

Acco rdlngly, DeVilbiss' .otion for sumMary judgment on Count I of the 
counterclaim is granted. 

II. PLAI~TIFF'S MOTION TO DISMISS COUNTS III and IV OF THE COU~TERCLAIM 

For the reason~ stated herein, DeVilbiss' motion to dismiss is granted. A 
complaint will not be dIsmissed for failure to state a claim unless it appears 
that the plaint1ff could not prove any set of facts which would entitle hi. to 
relief. Brlllhart v. Mutual "edical Ins., Inc., 768 F.2d 196,199 (7th Cir. 
19851; lapp v. United Transportation Union, 727 F.ld 617, 627 (7th Cir. 1984). A 
complaint must contain direct or inferential allegations of every material 
element necessary to state a legal theory of relief. Carl Sandburq Village
Condo. Assn. No. 1 v. First Condo Develop. co., 758 F.212 203, Z07 (7th Cir. 
1985), Sutliff, Inc. v. Donovan Co., Inc., 727, F.2d 64&,655 l7th Cir. 1984), A 
court can grant a motion to dismlss uif there is no reasonable prospect that the 
plaintiff can make out a cause of action fro. the events narrated in the 
cOllplaint." Carl Sandburg villaqe, 758 F.2d, at 207; Brillhart, 768 F.Zd, at 
198. Defendant is correct 1n assert1ng 1n h1s reply that if a complaint is 
insufficient it May not be a.ended by briefs in OPPOSition to the motion to 
d1smiss. Car Carr1ers, Inc. v. Ford "otor Co., 745 F.2d 1t01, 1107 <7th C1r. 
t984). Counts III and IV of the counterclaiM fail to state any claiM upon which 
relief May be granted. Count III falls to set forth, e1ther directly or 
indlrectly, allegations necessary to state a cause of action far Munfair trade" 
or "unfair competitionM. This court and the counterldefendant can only guess at 
the manner in which the activ1ties set forth in Count III constitute unfair 
trade or unfair competition. If Walberg is alleging that they constitute 
cOMmercial disparage~ent, it has failed to allege the appropriate elements. See, 
e.g., Sm1th-Victor Corp. v. Sylvania Electric Products, Inc., 242 F. Supp. 302, 
307 (N. D. Ill. 1965). 

If walberg is alleging wrongful interference wlth a prospective bus1ness
 
advantage, it did not set forth the necessary elellents. 5ee, e.g., Crinkley v.
 
Dow Jones & Co., 67 Ill.App.3d 869,878, N.E.2d 7\4 (1st Dist. 1979). To the
 
extent that the facts set forth ln Count III may g1ve rise to a cause of action
 
for defamation, as was noted by JUdge Grady 1n his HeMoranduM Op1nion of
 
september 30, 1983 regarding Count II, Count III only duplicates Caunt II. 5ee,
 
e.g., Chicago Heights venture v. Dynamite Nobel of America, Inc., No. 84-3087,
 
slip Ope at 15 (7th Clr. 1/28/86).
 

Count IV also fails to state any claim upon which relief could be granted.
 
Count IV is totally devoid of allegations necessary for a violation Of Sec. 1
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Of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. S1. See, generally, Copperweld Corp. v. 
Independence Tube Corp., -U.S.-, 104 S.Ct. 2731 (1984>; Car Carners, 745 f.2d 
1101. Count IV also lacks any allegat10ns of facts regardlng a v1olation of Sec. 
2 of the Sherllan Act, 15 U.S.C. S2, such as a threatened actual monopoly, larket 
power, or relevant product or geographlc Markets. See, generally, Copperweld, 
104 S.Ct. 2731. Similarly, there are no allegations of facts supporting a 
violation of Sec. 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. 518, such as those regardIng 
the illegal aCQuisition of a bus1ness enterprlse and a corresponding lessenlng 
of compet1tlon. See, generally, Brunswick Corp. v. Pueblo Bowl-O-Mat, Inc., 429 
U.S. 477 (19771. 

Accordingly, since the counter/plaintiff has not and apparently could not 
allege the necessary legal or factual elements of any legal theory for Whicn 
this court could grant re11ef, Counts III and IV of the amended counterclall are 
d 1sm iss ed. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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ILLINOIS CORPORATE TRAVEL, INC. d/b/a "cTRAVEL TRAVEL
 
SERVICES, Plalnttff, v. AMERICAN AIRLINES, INC., Defendant
 

No. 85 C Q7079 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT Of
 
ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION
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Janua ry 8, 1986 

OPINIONBY: 6ETZENDANNER 

OPINION: ME"ORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER 

SUSAN GETZENDANNER, Dtstrtct judge: 

ThlS antltrust case 1s before the court on the plaintiff's motion to 
reconslder and set astde the court's September 16, 1985 memoranduM op1n1on and 
order denying plaintiff's aotton for a prelimlnary injunction. Although the case 
has now been reasstgned to judge Brian DUff, I offered to rule on the motion in 
order to avoid the necesslty of reconvening any evldentiary hearings, and judge
Duff agreed by order dated December 6, 1985. Plaintlff ralses two arguments: 1) 
that the court erred in balanclng the hardships to the parties; and 2 I that the 
court l.properly applied common law agency principles to pla1nt1ff's allegations 
of resale price maintenance. 

1. Balance of Hardshl ps 

Plaintlff raises two dlstlnct arguaents concerning the balance of hardships. 
first ls that the court erred ln characterlzing plaintiff's estiMates of harm as 
·conclusory.· Second ls that the court unfalrly relled on American's clails of 
harl to lts distribution system when plalntlff was precluded fro. lnvestigatlng 
and exposing the Neaknesses of those claiMS at the prel181nary Injunction 
hearing. Neither argument seems to the court persuasive groundS for 
reconsideration. 

Plaintiff's evidence of Irreparable hare cons1sts al.ost entirely of oplnlon 
evldence fro. its preSident Richard Dlckleson not that it wlll go out of 
business, but that it will be prevented froe opening a number of additional 
"cTravel offices through use of an ad.lttedly novel pricing and advertlslng 
systel. As Dlckleson set forth ln his affidaVit, "cTravel ls beth a -recent 
entrant lnto the travel agency business- and the "first- travel agency to 
pro_ote the d1scount travel concept. CDlckieson Aff. PP 26-27). While current 
losses due to delays In thls strategy are clearly difficult to quantify, the 
fact remains that what "cTravel see~s Dy an injunctton Is not a preservation of 
the status quo, under which Amertcan'S travel agenCies are not allowed to 
advertlse rebates, Dut a chance to capitallte on a newly COMpetitive aarket. 
Thus, while "cTravel's Injurles are -Irreparable· In the sense that they are 
diff1cult to quant1fy, the chlef losses of Which "cTravel complains involve 
beneflts not presently enjoyed. 

Plalntlff vigorously argues that grantlng an lnJunct10n would preserve rather 
than alter the status QUO since "cTravel, while not an authorized A.er1can 
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agent, was nonetheless authorlLed under its ARC agreement to issue American 
tickets Oy uSlng tIle Imprint plates of other earners IHth which American has a 
bllateral ticketlng arrangement. The flaw in thlS argument IS that at no time 
until Just before this suit dld McTravel make national efforts to promote its 
rebatlng policies. (A chlef example would be the pro/lotlonal spots on "GOOd 
Morning America.~) While permitting McTravel to continue Issulng American 
tlckets would In part preserve the status quo, permItting McTravel to issue such 
tlckets while purSUing an aggresslve marketing strategy would greatly alter the 
status quo. 

For simllar reasons, the court rejects plaintlff's contention that reliance 
on American's harm was erroneous. In welghlng the relatlve hardships between 
American and "cTravel, the court was not opining that the InJunction would 
economically dilinish American's business. Had the court done so, plaintiff
would be correct to complain that evidentiary rUlings impaired its abllity to 
refute American's claims. ~y pOint, however, was that any legiti~ate interest 
American had in maintaining its distribution system would be lrreparably lost 
were McTravel allowed to pursue its aggreSSive new strategies. The court's use 
of the word -harm" was apparently _isleading, but was based on McTravel's claims 
that its new marketing would revolutionile the travel agency business. Taking
those claims of success as correct, to grant the preli.inary injunction WOUld, 
as a practical _atter, moot the entire controversy by requiring AMerican to 
Change its distribution system whether that system is lawfUl or not. The court 
therefore adheres to its conclUSions about the relative balance of hardships, 
absent a stronger showing of success on the merits. 

2. Probability of Success 

Plaintiff Makes two related arguments in favor of reconSidering the court's 
assess.ent on the merits of the case: first that the court erroneously found 
"cTravel to be an "agent" of American under cOIII_on-law principles and second 
that common-law agency analYSis is In any event inappropriate for antitrust 
analysiS. In support of the first argument, plaintiff cites two cases, both 
presented to the court for the first ti_e on this aotion, which hold that i 
travel agency Is not an Magent· of the airline for bankruptcy related purposes.
In In re Shullllan Transport Enterprises, Inc., 744 f.ld 293 (Zd Clr. 1984), Pan 
American Airlines atte~pted to assert a priority over proceeds held by an 
international freight forwarder which had filed for Chapter 11 protection. The 
court rejected the argument that the debtor held the proceeds of the atr space 
sales 1n the fiduciary capaCity of an agent, and thus held that the debtor's 
secured lender had priority over the airline to the funds. The court laid 
particular stress on the airline's lack of control over the debtor's collection 
of funds. Id. at 295. 

The other case, In re "orales Travel Agency, 667 f.2d 1069 (1st Clr. 1981), 
involved a sl.ilar situation: Eastern Airl1nes atte~pted to clai. i.Mediate 
possession of fundS held by a bankrupt travel agent on the ground that the funds 
represented proceedS of its sales. NotWithstanding language in the governing 
trade agree-ent that such proceeds were property of the airline to be held In 
trust, the court noted that the travel agent nowhere segregated the proceeds Of 
airline sales froa its general fundS, and held the relationShip to be one of 
debtor-creditor rather than one of trust. Id. at 1071-72. 

Assuming that the facts in Shul.an and Morales are fully applicable here, n1 
1t still does not follow as a matter of law that defendant's ban on the 
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advertIsIng of rebates is per Sf illegal. Both Shulman and Morales were 
concerned with the ostensible ownershIp problems created when a travel agent
commingles funds collected for particular carrIers in its general accounts. 
Those cases theoretically have little application to the agency InQuIry under 
antitrust law, MhlCh IS couched in terms of whether a given consignment .as~s an 
unlaLllful resale prIce maintenance scheme. Here, the function of travel agents IS 
to act as mere conduits through WhON AmerIcan sells directly to customers, not 
resellers, and the agency inqUiry holds. 

n1 The Airlines Reporting CorporatIon (ARC) agreement which governs 
Alerlcan's relatIons with plaintiff provides at Section VII-B that ICT shall 
deSignate a bank account for the benefit of ARC and the carrier to hold the 
proceedS from sales of air transportation. The court has assumed that this 
language does not require ICT to designate separate bank accounts for each 
carrier. If this assumption is erroneous, however, St1ullan and Morales !light be 
factually distinguiShable. 

PlaIntiff secondly argues that application of common-law agency principles 
was In any event Improper. Pla1ntiff re11es in its brief Chiefly on Simpson v. 
UnIon 011 Co., 377 U.S. 13 (1964), in which the Supreme Court lIIade clear that 
the forma11ties of conSignment relationships, such as passage of Utle, lIIay not 
be used to avoid antitrust liab1lity for an otherwise unlawful resale price 
Maintenance scheme. Pla1ntiff interprets Simpson to reqUire a finding that the 
agent lacks 1ndependence and is in effect little more than an employee before a 
court can find an agent's lack of pricing authority to be a lawful attribute of 
a true consign.ent relationship. 

Plaintiff's interpretation is borne out in many cases which stress an 
agent-plaint1ff's lack of entrepreneurial independence as one basis for finding 
no resale pr1ce maintenance in a particular fixed price cons1gnment. See, e.g., 
Holter v. Moore &Co., 702 F.ld 854 (10th eir.), cert. denied, 464 U.S. 937 
(1983); Hardwick v. Nu-Way 011 Co., Inc., 589 F.Zd 806,810 (5th Cir.), cert. 
denied, 444 U.S. 836 (1979); American 011 eo. v. McMulltn, 508 F.2d 1345, 13~1 

(5th Cir. 197~); Laurence J. Gordon, Inc. v. Brandt, Inc., ~54 F.Supp. 1144, 
11~O (W. D. Wash. 1983). However, the above courts have also interpreted Silpson 
not to inval1date all fixed price conSignment relat10nShips, but SiMply to 
requ1re courts to exaline the substance of a purported consignment relatton in 
deterlining whether the consignlent is bona fide or not. Th1s exaMination 
involves lIIany factors, particularly whether the agent bears the risks of the 
distribution process. See, e.g., Mesirow v. Pepperidge farl, Inc., 703 F.2d 339, 
343 (9th eir.), cert. denied, 464 U.S. 820 (1983); Hardwick, 589 F.2d at 809; 
Pogue v. International Industries, Inc., 524 f.2d 342, 345 (6th Cir. 1915);
Greene v. General Foods Corp., 517 F.Zd 635, 653 (5th eir. 1975), cert. denied, 
424 U.S. 942 (1976); Laurence J. Gordon, Inc., 554 F.Supp. at 1150. Travel 
agents assule no risk of loss due to unsold air space, and the court relied 
chiefly on that lack of risk 1n finding a true consign.ent relationship to 
eXist. 

Even assum1ng that entrepreneurial independence is the true litmus test for 
vertical price restraints under Simpson, plaintiff'S status as an independent
business entity does not control the question of its agency status w1th respect
to the purchase and sale of Alerican tickets. Just as a so-called agent may act 
in that capaci ty as to same Rtters but not others, In re Shul.an Transport 
Enterprises, Inc., 744 f~2d 293,295 (2d Cir •. 1984), so Mayan otherwise 
independent business entIty be a mere agent wlth respect to certain 
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actlyitles. See, e.g., Hardwic~, 589 F.2d at 809-810 (store owner, although an 
independent operator in many respec:s, held an agent with respect to sale. of 
gasoline frOM pump outside store). 

ApplIcation of this prInciple to the present case produces mixed results. 
McTravel, while clearly not an -employee" of American, does not bear the indicia 
of an entrepreneur 1n selling aefendant'S tiCkets: plaintiff can only negotiate 
a sale after checking with American that a flight seat IS In fact available, 
does not assume the risk of unsold seats, never purchases the tickets for 
resale, and is not a party to the contract for the sale of the fl1ght, which is 
executed as if between the airline and the customer. These factors strongly 
support the court's earlier analysis. 

On the other hand, the custo.er remits pay~ent to the travel agency in the 
latter'S name, and the contract between American and its agents does not specify 
how funds should be collected. While this risk can be Ninimized through 
accepting only cash or approved credit cardS, the risk of nonpayment due to 
custo.er default nonetheless re.ains with ~cTravel, not A.erican. Unlike the 
risks incurred by the plaIntiff in Simpson, however, this risk does not attach 
until after the customer agrees to purChase an airline ticket. The court 
therefore assumed that American's interest in prIce regulation of airline 
tickets would be JustifIed by the fact that the risk of unsold tickets remains 
With American throughout the sales process, despite its use of outside agents 
instead of employees as salespeople. n2 

n2 "cTravel has also argued that the court erred in finding no true 
competition between the airline and the agent. While A_erian collects less money 
on tickets sold by agents than tickets sold through American salespeople, it 
also incurs less expenses on thOse sales. Even assuming, however, that American 
has an interest in aaxlmitlng the number of sales it .akes througn its own 
offices, any co.petition between travel agents and sales personnel reflects the 
fact that the travel agents function as salesmen and not as independent 
distributors who purchase for resale to third parties. 

Plaintiff finally argues that the distinction between sales and consignaent 
transactions has been speCifically discredited for antitrust purposes in 
Continental T.V., Inc. v. GTE Sylvania, Inc., 433 U.S. 36, 55 (1977). In 
Sylvania, the SupreMe Court reversed its earlier decision in United States v. 
Arnold Schwlnn &Co., 388 U.S. 365 (1967), and held that vertical nonprice 
restrictions shOuld be invalidated only under a rule-ot-reason standara basea on 
demonstrable econo.ic effect. The court's language overruling Schwinn is 
instructive. In SChwinn, the court had ruled that vertical nonprice restrictions 
should be held per se unlawful Nhere a manufacturer seeks to "restrict and 
confine areas or persons With whom an article aay be traded after the 
manufacturer has parted With do.inion over it.- 388 U.S. at 379, quoted in 
Sylvania, 433 U.S. at 44. But the Schwinn court went on to state that the rule 
of reason governs ~hen Nthe ManUfacturer retatns title, do.tnion, and risk With 
respect to the prOduct and the position and function of the dealer in question 
are, in fact, indistinguiShable from those of an agent or sales.an of the 
manufacturer.- 388 U.S. at 380, quoted in Sylvania, 433 U.S. at 44-45. 

The Schwinn decision was the SUbject of nu.erous schOlarly critiques, .any of 
the. argUing that its distinction between sale and consign.ent transactions was 
essentially for.altstic and unrelated to any relevant economic i.pact. See 
Baker, Vertical Restralnts in Times of Change: Froa White to SchWinn to 

LEX'S'NEX'S'LEX'S'HEX'S'
 



Page
Services of \1ead Data Central, Inc. 

SliP Opinion 

IoIhere', 44 Antitrust L.J. 537, 537 (1975); Comanor, Vertlcal Terrltorial and 
Customer Restrictions: Wtl1te Motor and Its After.attl, 81 Harv. l. Rev. 1419, 
1422 (1968); McLaren, Territorial & Customer Restnctions, ConsIgnments, 
Suggested Resale PrlCfS ant:3 Refusals to Deal, 37 Antitrust l.J. 137,145 (1978); 
Posner, Antitrust Policy and the supreme Court: An AnalysIs of the Restricted 
Distribution, Horirontal Merger and Potential Co.petition DeciSions, 75 (alum.
L.	 Rev. 282,288-89 (1975); Note, Vertical TerrltorIal & Custolller RestrIctIons 
in the franchIsing Industry, 10 (olulll. J. law & Soc. Problems 497, 503 (19741. 
The Sylvania Court aCknowledged the weight of this collective sCholarShip, noted 
that Schwinn provided "no analytical support" for t:3iStinguishing between sale 
and nonsale restrictIons, and concluded that SCh~lnn's exemption of nonsale 
transactions from the per se rule was due to the Court's unexplained belIef that 
a complete per se prohibitlon of vertical restraints would be infleXible. 43J 
U.S. at 54. The Court concluded "that tile cHstinction drawn in Schwinn between 
sale and nonsale transactIons is not sufficlent to justIfy the application of a 
per se rule in one situation and a rule of reason in ttle other." 433 U.S. at 57. 
The Court then concluded that the per se rule stated in Schwinn for nonprice 
restrictions, instead of being expanded to Include non-sale transactions, should 
be abandoned in favor of a reasonableness analysiS. I~. 

Plaintiff's extrapolations from Sylvania can be su~mar1led as follows. 
Because sale and nonsale transactions cannot be distinguiShed in terms of 
economic effect, the Supreae Court's continued per se condemnation of vertical 
price fiXIng must be adhered to regardless of th! fori 1n which American runs 
its distribution systell. This argument is certainly not without force. Sylvania, 
however, concerned the distinction between consignments and sales as systems of 
distribution, and did not address the cont1nued vitality of the rule that a 
retailer is entitled to ~eter~ine the price at which it sells its own prOducts
directly to consumers even though negotiated through outside agents. In this 
court's opinion, Sylvania's logic Should not be extended to hold per se unlawful 
an agency type sales network sl~1lar to those upheld by other courts, even after 
Sylvania, under the rule of Simpson and General Electric. See, supra, pages 5-6. 

Significantly, none of the post-Sylvania cases addreSSing the cont1nued 
vi tal1ty of the "agency" exception articulated in Silllpson have considered the 
arguMent put forward by plaintiff. The only caSe to discuss Sylvania at all, 
Laurence J. Gordon, Inc. v. Brandt, Inc., 554 F.Supp. 1144 (W.O. Wash. 1983), 
expressly reaffirms the teaching of Simpson that restra1nts i.posed on 
individuals who do not possess entrepreneurial indiCia are outside the scope of 
Section 1. Id. at 1151. In this case, while plaintiff operates as an independent
business entity generally, it does not possess sufficient independence With 
respect to the sale of alrl1ne tickets to qualify as a reseller under antitrust 
analySiS. The court adds, however, that this conclusion is based on the record 
of the prel1ainary injunCtion hearing, and 1s not meant to foreclose a different 
result after a fuller hearing on the merits. 

American argues that Sylvania is inapt since the Court in that case actually 
relaxed the rules under the Sherman Act With regard to vertical restr1ctions, 
and thereby offers justification for American'S prohibition of rebate 
advertis1ng. While there 15 some cogency to this argu.ent, and scholarly support 
as well, see, e.g., Posner, The Next Step 1n the Antitrust Treatlllent of 
Restricted DiStribution: Per Se Legality, 48 U. Chi. L.Rev. 6, 9 (981), the 
Court in Sylvania expresSly dec11ned to call into question the long standing 
prOh1bition on resale price maintenance. 433 U.S. at ~1 n.18. That position has 
since been reafflrmed. ~onsanto Co. v. Spray-Rite Serv1ce corp., 104 S.Ct. 
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CHAR CREWS, INC.,	 Plaintlff, VS CHRISTOFLE SILVER, INC., 
et al., Defendants. 

No. 81 C 3940 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
 
ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION
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February 8, 1982 

OPINIONBV: DEC~ER 

OPINION: MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER 

Plalnt1ff, Char Crews, Inc., brought this action against defendants, 
Chrlstone Silver, Inc., Baccarat, Inc., and Richard I(aplan, alleging that they 
had violated Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C.S 1, by attempting to force 
plalntlff to engage in retail price ~aintenance. Pending are mot1ons to diS~isS 

from all defendants. 

Pla1ntiff alleges the follow1ng 1n its complaint, ~hiCh, for the purposes of 
the 1nstant motions, must be taken as true. Prior to ~arcn 1981, defendant 
Baccarat was the sale United States distr1butor of Chr1stofle silverplate 
tableware and other items, which are manufactured in France. AS part of its 
distribution Outles, Baccarat providea retailers with lists of suggested retail 
prices for the silverplate.8eginning in "arch of 1980, plaintiff began to 
purChase sllverplate fro", Baccarat for retail. Plaintiff is in the bus1ness of 
selling at a discount china, crystal, stainless steel tableware and silverplate.
Char Crews resold the Christofle s1lverplate at a discount of twenty percent 
from the suggested retail prices prOvided by Baccarat. 

According to the co~plaint, Baccarat began to put pressure on Char Crews to 
stop d1scounting the Christofle stlverplate. The ucoercion" began by 
conversations With Baccarat's sales representative, David Armstrong, and 
escalated to Baccarat's refusal to fill Char Crews' orders on a tiaely basis and 
to provide the customary dtsplay and pra.otional materials to Char Crews. Those 
actions were allegedly carried out at the direction of defendant Kaplan, who was 
an e.ployee af Baccarat and in Charge of the distribution of Christofle 
silverplate. It seems, however, that through ~arch 1981, Char Crews continued 
to sell Christafle silverplate. 

In March 1981, Baccarat ceased its business of selling Christofle silverplate 
to retailers, and Christofle Stlver succeeded tt as the sale distributor of the 
sllverplate to retatlers In the United States. Christone Stlver was organlZ.ed 
as a corporation in 1958, but it had re.ained dormant unt11 it undertook the 
distribution duties in ~arch 1981. Plaintiff alleges that the change in 
distributors was done so that the new distributor could refuse to sell to 
retailers who were offering the silverplate at discount prices. When the Change 
was made, Kaplan reSigned frOM Baccarat and accepted e8ployment With Christofle 
StIver, where he remained in charge of distributing Christofle silverplate. 

On March 31, 198', Char Crews sent an order for 51lverplate to Christofle 
Silver. Christofle Silver refused to fill the order, and in April 1981, 

LEXIS'NEXIS"LEXIS'NEXIS'
 



Paqe c:­
$erJices of Mead Dati Central. Inc. - '0: 

SUp Opll110n 

informed Char Crews that Chrlstofle Sllver would no longer sell silverplate to 
1 t. Plaintl ff alleges that that action was taken because 1t refused to cOlllply 
wlth defendants' llst of suggested retall prices. 

Plalntlff claims that the above acts, effectively termlnating lt as a 
retailer of Cnristofle silverplate, were part of a conspiracy between the 
defendants to engage in unlawful resale price maintenance. Plalntlff also 
alleges that ather retallers of Christofle sllverplate also consplred wi th 
defendants to commit the per se vlolatlons of Section 1 of the Snerrxan Act. 

Defendants have flled two separate motions to dismiss the claims agalnst 
them, one motlon flled Oy defendant Baccarat, and one flled jOintly by
defendants Christofle SlIver and Kaplan. Several issues have been raised by the 
various defendants, however, because the court findS that one 1ssue ls 
dlSpositlve as to all defendants, only It will be discussed below. 

One of the basic elements necessary to state a cause Of action under Section 
1 is the presence of a conspiracy. The Seventh Circult Court of Appeals 
recently stated: 

"Section 1 of the Sherman Act prOhlbits contracts, combinations, or 
conspiracies unreasonably restraining trade or cOlmerce. The fundamental 
prerequlsite is unlawful conduct by two or more parties pursuant to an 
agreement, explici t or illlplled. Solely unilateral conduct, regardless of as 
anti-competitive effects, IS not prohiblted by Section 1. Rather, to establish 
an unlawful combinatlon or conspiracy, there must be ev1dence that two or lore 
parties have knowingly participated in a common sche.e or design to acco~plish 

an anti-co.petitive purpose. N 

Contractor utility Sales Co. v. Certain-teed Products Corp., 638 f .2d 1061, 
1074 (7th Cir. 1981). Even a per se antitrust Violation like resale price 
laintenance is not prohibited if done unilaterally by the lIIanufacturer or 
distributor. See United States v. Colgate & Co., 250 U.S. 300 (1919>­

The allegations of plaintiff's co.plaint fail to adequately set forth that 
eleMent of a Section 1 claim.Initially, the court notes that the general 
allegations that defendants conspired together, either allong Ute.selves or Nith 
retailers other than plaintiff, are not sufficient to state a cause of action. 
General allegations of conspiracy are aerely legal conclusions, and Must be 
supported with allegations of some specific facts tending to show the eXistence 
of the alleged conspiracy. See ~cCleneghan v. Union Stock Yards Co. of Omaha, 
298 f .2d 659 (8th Cir. 1962). That rule applies, even recognizing the liberal 
notice pleading allowed by the federal Rules of Civil Procedure. SINS v. Mack 
Truck Corp., 488 f.Supp. 592 (E.D.Pa. 1980). 

It is eVident, then, that the only facts alleged in plaintiff's cONplaint, 
which could potentially show a conspiracy to violate the antitrust laws, involve 
the actions taken by the naMed defendants to eliminate Char Crews as a dealer of 
Chrlstofle silverplate. However, the facts, as stated, show as a .atter of law 
tha t such a conspl racy was not pass illle. 

Plaintiff alleges that Baccarat was the sole U.s. distributor of Chr1stofle 
silverplate until March 1981. At that tiae, Baccarat ceased being the 
dlstrlDutor. No allegations of the co.pla1nt suggest that Baccarat had an,
further interaction wlth plaintiff after that date, nor do any allegations 
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suggest that Baccarat had any contacts wIth the neN distrIbutor, Christofle 
Silver. Plaintiff has not alleged any facts showing any conspiracy oet~een the 
corporate defendants after March 1981. 

Nor coula tMe corporate defendants have conspired before that aate either. 
The complaint states that Christofle SIlver was a dormant corporatIon until It 
undertook the distrIbutIon duties on "arch 1981. Plaintiff has suggested no 
way, nor 15 the court able to imagIne one, that a dormant corporatIon, without 
employees or bUSIness, can conspIre with anyone about anything. 

FInally, plaintIff'S complalnt is not saved by the allegatIons that the 
individual defendant, Richard Kaplan, conspired with the two corporate
defendants to violate the antitrust laNSe Plaintlff alleged that at all times 
relevant to this SUit, "r. Kaplan was an employee of one or the other of the two 
successive distributors. It is a general rule of antitrust law that a 
corporation cannot conspIre WIth one of its awn employees. H &B EqUipment Co. 
v. International Harvester Ca., 577 F.Zd 2.39,244 (5th elr. 1978). An exception 
to that rule exists for those rare occasions where the employee has an 
independent personal stake in acllieVlng the OOject of the conspiracy. Id. No 
allegation has been made that that is the case here. 

The court therefore holds that plaintIff has faIled to state a cause of 
action. The conclusory allegations that the nallled defendants conspired with 
retail sellers other than plaintiff are insufficient as a matter of law. In 
addition, the facts pleaded in the complaint show that a conspiracy between the 
named defendants was impossible. 

For the reasons stated above, defendants Baccarat, Christofle Silver, and 
~aplan's mot1ons to diSMiss are granted. This action 1s hereby ordered 
d1slllissed. 
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DEFENDANT CAREMARK INC.'S
 
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
 

SUPPORTING ITS MOTION TO DISMISS ACTIONS
 

Pursuant to Rule 3(b) of the General Rules for the 

United States District Court for the Southern District of New .. 
York, defendant Caremark Inc. ("Caremark") respectfully submits 

this memorandum of points and authorities in support of its 

motion to dismiss these actions against it for failure to state 

any claim upon which relief can be granted. 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

Caremark here seeks dismissal pursuant to Rule 12(b) (6) 

of the Federal Rules of civil Procedure of 24 virtually identical 

actions brought by 24 state Attorneys General as parentes 



patriarum. 1 The proceedings involve the patented new 

schizophrenia drug clozapine, trade name CLOZARIL~, a 

pharmaceutical developed, manufactured and marketed by Caremark's 

co-defendant Sandoz Pharmaceuticals Corporation ("Sandoz"), which 

also holds an exclusive license for it. The States2 frame their 

Complaints under the Sherman and Clayton antitrust Acts, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1, 2, and 15. However, the Complaints reveal that the 

States' real grievance is the cost of CLOZARIL~ treatment and the 

link between CLOZARIL~ dispensing and blood testing, neither of 

which can be construed to constitute an antitrust violation. 

This Court should reject the States' efforts to hoodwink it into 

a spurious use of the antitrust laws to diminish the price, and 

the safeguards, for CLOZARIL~. 

The States correctly assert that "clozapine treatment 

is vastly superior to treatment with standard neuroleptics for 

many schizophrenia patients." (Complaint, 25}3 However, 

clozapine poses a potentially fatal threat to the immune system 

of users, agranulocytosis. As defined by the States, 

"'[a)granulocytosis' [is) a medical condition resulting from 

acute suppression of the bone marrow's ability to produce white 

The parens patriae doctrine permits the government to 
bring an action on behalf of persons who have suffered 
antitrust inj ury. Kansas v. Ut.i 1 icorp United, Inc., 
__U.S. __ , 110 S. ct. 2807, 2818 (1990). 

2	 The twenty-four plaintiffs are sometimes collectively 
referred to herein as lithe states." 

3 Except where noted, all citations are to Minnesota's 
·Complaint. 

2 



blood cells," which "may lead to death from infection." 

(Complaint !! 4, 27) Because of this risk, the FDA required that 

"blood monitoring be reliably linked to the use of clozapine n as 

a condition of approval of the drug. (Complaint! 48, 50) 

(emphasis added) As part of its FDA approval, Sandoz received 

the exclusive right to market clozapine in the united States for 

five years. (Complaint! 48) 

Caremark and Sandoz developed the CLOZARIL~ Patient 

Management System ("CPMS") to ensure that drug dispensing took 

place only following reliable blood tests. FDA approval for new 

drugs includes approval of labelling. Sandoz's labelling 

submitted to, and approved by, the FDA included a description of 

CPMS. (Complaint !! 48-50) The FDA subsequently "interpreted" 

its approval for CLOZARIL~ not to mandate CPMS by name. 

(Complaiflt ! 50) 

Under CPMS, Caremark provides "blood drawing, case 

administration, data base, and dispensing services" and 

administers CLOZARIL~ therapy under the terms of a Commercial 

Agreement between Sandoz and Caremark. CLOZARIL~ therapy in 

accordance with CPMS costs $172 per week. (Complaint!! 37, 40, 

50) At present CLOZARIL~ is distributed only through the CPMSi a 

patient receives "CLOZARILa therapy, II including the mandatory 

weekly blood testing, upon enrolling-in CPMS, and pays one price 

for CLOZARIL~ therapy.4 Contrary to the States' allegations, 

Sandoz has announced that CLOZARIL~ will be available 
via other dispensing mechanisms, (Wall st. Journal, 
January 15, 1991, § B, at 4, col. 1i copy attached) but 

3 
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CPMS is not a package of services, but a single commodity, the 

form for treatment using clozapine approved by the FDA. 

The heart of these proceedings is unhappiness on the 

part of the states with the FDA drug approval system and with 

this country's patent system, which Congress enacted to give 

inventors a limited-time,~lawful monopoly over their inventions. 

The states' concerns may belong before Congress, but they do not 

belong before this Court, and they certainly do not belong under 

the guise of seeking protection from antitrust violations. 

no such alternative is in place at present and the 
states allege none. 
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ARGUMENT 

I 

THE STATES LACK STANDING TO BRING THESE ACTIONS ON 
BEHALF OF THEMSELVES OR THEIR INSTITUTIONS, AGENCIES, 

DEPARTMENTS, DIVISIONS, OR ANY INDIRECT PURCHASERS 

Each state purports to bring an action on "its own 

pehalf, on behalf of its institutions, agencies, departments, 

divisions and political subdivisions that purchase health care 

goods and services, as parens patriae on behalf of schizophrenia 

patients and other natural persons for whom plaintiff may act, 

and as parens patriae on behalf of plaintiff's economy and 

general welfare." (Complaint, 5) The parens patriae doctrine 

created no new or expanded substantive liability. utilicorp 

united, Inc., __U.S. __ , 110 S. ct. at 2818. The States thus 

derive their standing from two, and only two, sources: 

•	 standing to represent themselves and their 
agencies and SUbdivisions, as states; and 

•	 standing as parentes patriarum to represent their 
citizens. 

If a state on its own, or the citizen[s] which the 

state intends to represent on their own, could not bring suit, 

then neither can a state as parens. It follows that where, as 

here, neither the state nor any natural person state resident has 

alleged facts showing antitrust injury, that is, antitrust injury 

to their property, the States have no standing as parentes 

patriarum. 15 U.S.C. § 15c (a) (1). 
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A.	 unidentified state Agencies Have No Standing 

The Attorney General of a state lacks standing to sue 

on behalf of unnamed, unidentified "institutions, agencies, 

departments, divisions, and sUbdivisions" ("agencies"). 

(Complaint! 5) In New York v. Cedar Park Concrete Corp., 665 F. 

Supp. 238, 240 (S.O.N.Y. 1987), the state Attorney General as 

parens patriae sought damages "on behalf of governmental 

agencies, political subdivisions and pUblic authorities of the 

state of New York ... " under section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 1, and pendent state claims. In granting defendants' 

motion to dismiss, this Court admonished that "the complaints 

should be dismissed insofar as they purport to state treble 

damages claims on behalf of unidentified state sUbdivisions." 

Id. at 242. Because the states fail to identify the agencies 

harmed by the alleged antitrust violations, their actions on 

behalf of the agencies must be dismissed. 

B.	 The states Fail to Allege Antitrust Standing
 
Under Section 4 of the Clayton
 
Act for the States or Their Agencies
 

Standing to sue under the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1 et 

seg., arises from section 4 of the clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 15. 5 

However, Congress did not intend to enable "every person tangen­

tially affected by an antitrust violation to maintain an action 

to recover threefold damages .... " Blue Shield of Virginia v. 

McCready, 457 U.S. 465,' 477 (1982). Accordingly, the Supreme 

5	 section 4 of the Clayton Act entitles "[a]ny person who 
shall be injured in his business or property by reason 
of anything forbidden in the antitrust laws" to sue for 
treble damages. 15 U.S.C. § 15. 
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court has limited Clayton Act standing. The States' allegations 

are insufficient to confer standing in the following ways. 

1.	 The States have alleged no antitrust 
injury to themselves or their agencies 

For antitrust standing under the Clayton Act, a 

plaintiff must allege not simply an injury "causally linked" to 

an antitrust violation, but antitrust injury, that is 

• injury to its business or property, 

• of the type the antitrust laws were intended to 
prevent and that flows from that which makes 
defendants' acts unlawful. 

15 U.S.C. § 15; Brunswick Corp. v. Pueblo Bowl-O-Mat, 429 U.S. 

477, 489 (1977); accord, Triple M Roofing Corp. v. Tremco. Inc., 

753 F.2d 242, 247 (2d Cir. 1985); ~ v. F.E.L. Publications. 

Ltd., 688 F.2d 441, 444 (7th Cir. 1982): In re Industrial Gas 

Antitrust Litigation, 681 F.2d 514, 519 (7th Cir. 1982), cert. 

denied sub nom. Bichan v. Chemetron Corp., 460 U.S. 1016 (1983): 

RJM Sales & Marketing v. Banfi Products Corp., 546 F. Supp. 1368 

(D. Minn. 1982). 

As to the first requirement, the States do not allege 

the existence of a single CLOZARIL~ therapy purchase by a state 

or state agency. They purport to allege that "prices for CPMS 

have been fixed, raised, maintained, and stabilized(.]" 

Complaint! 56(b). However, they nowhere aver that any state or 

state agency has purchased CLOZARIL~ therapy directly at any 

price, let alone a "fixed," "raised," "maintained" or 

"stabilized" price. Absent allegation of such a direct purchase, 

the States cannot as a matter of law meet the antitrust standing 
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requirement of pleading direct injury flowing from the market 

conditions affected by defendants' conduct. 

As to the second requirement, Congress enacted the 

Sherman Act "to assure customers the benefits of price 

competition[.]" Associated General Contractors v. California 

State Council of Carpenters, 459 U.S. 519, 538 (1983). However, 

the Complaints do not aver that the states and their agencies are 

consumers of CLOZARIL~ therapy afforded the protection of the 

Sherman Act, and therefore they do not allege any injury akin to 

those which the antitrust laws were to prevent. 

2. The States are not proper plaintiffs 

Even assuming that the States had stated claims upon 

which relief could be granted, and had alleged antitrust injury, 

these actions would still require dismissal because under section 

4 of the clayton Act, the states and their agencies are not the 

"proper plaintiff[s]" here. Cargill. Inc. v. Monfort of 

Colorado. Inc., 479 U.S. 104, 110 n.5 (1986). The reasons that 

an entity may not be a "proper plaintiff" include "the existence 

of an identifiable class of persons whose self-interest would 

normally motivate them to vindicate the public interest in 

antitrust enforcement;" the directness or indirectness of the 

asserted injury; the speculativeness of the alleged injury; and' 

the difficulty of identifying and apportioning damages among 

direct and indirect victims so as to avoid duplicative 

recoveries. Associated General Contractors, 459 U.S. at 540-45; 

Triple M Roofing Corp., 753 F.2d at 247. courts interpret these 
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four factors with the teaching of McCready, 457 U.S. 465, which 

narrowed the limits on antitrust standing to (1) prevent 

duplicative recoveries and (2) limit recovery for injuries remote 

from the alleged antitrust violation. See,~, de Atucha v. 

Commodity Exchange, Inc., 608 F. Supp 510, 514 (S.D.N.Y. 1985). 

Here, permitting the states and their agencies to sue 

would create a risk of duplicative recoveries, since the states 

nowhere allege that they or their agencies have purchased 

CLOZARIL~ therapy directly. Others more immediately harmed by 

the alleged violations -- actual purchasers of CLOZARIL* therapy 
,... '" 

and arguably defendants' competitors -- might also seek 

compensation for the same antitrust violations alleged by the 

states. 

Similarly, under the facts alleged, treatment 

recipients who themselves paid for CLOZARIL~ therapy have 

suffered a more direct injury and therefore have a greater 

interest in challenging .the purported violations than do the 

states and their agencies. n(D]irect purchasers ... were the 

injured parties who as a group were most likely to press their 

claims with the vigor that the § 4 treble-damages remedy was 

intended to promote. n McCready, 457 U.S. at 474 (citing Illinois 

Brick Co. v. Illinois, 431 U.S. 720, 735 (1977».6 Under 

Even if this court inferred that the states or their 
agencies were direct purchasers of CLOZARIL~ therapy, 
Illinois Brick confirms the absence of antitrust 
standing of all indirect purchasers (both schizophrenia
patients who obtained CLOZARIL* therapy indirectly 
through the state and its agencies, rather than 
directly from Caremark, and any schizophrenia patients 
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Associated General contractors, 459 U.S. at 538-42, any injury 

suffered by a would-be party who is "neither a consumer nor a 

competitor in the market" is too indirect to confer standing. 

The states' failure to aver specifically that they and their 

agencies are consumers or competitors in the CLOZARIL~ therapy 

market makes their alleged injur~es indirect and speculative, and 

hence difficult to identify or apportion. See International 

Television Productions Ltd. v. Twentieth Century-Fox Television, 

622 F. Supp. 1532, 1539 (S.D.N.Y. 1985) (denying standing to 

indirect antitrust victim with speculative injuries); Ashley 

Meadows Farm, Inc. v. American Horse Shows, 593 F. Supp. 1184, 

1188 (S.D.N.Y. 1984), summary jUdgment denied, 609 F. Supp. 677 

(S.D.N.Y. 1985) (derivative victim of alleged antitrust violation 

denied standing). 

Considering Congress' intent in enacting section 4 of 

the Clayton Act, the Supreme Court noted that "there is a point 
.. 

beyond which the wrongdoer should not be held liable."
 

Associated General Contractors, 459 U.S. at 534-35. The States'
 

failure to allege that they or their agencies are participants or
 

customers in the CLOZARIL* therapy market removed them from the
 

class of those qualified to assert claims under the antitrust
 

laws.
 

who did not obtain CLOZARIL~ therapy). 431 U.S. at 
735. Thus, the Complaints would have to be dismissed, 
at a minimum, as to patients who received CLOZARIL~ 
therapy from the states or their agencies, and as to 
schizophrenics who have not bought CLOZARIL~ therapy. 
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C. The Attorneys General as Parentes Patriarum Lack 
~tanding to Represent "Schizophrenia Patients" 

The states purport to bring this action not only on 

behalf of CLOZARIL~ purchasers, but also on behalf of 

"schizophrenia patients and other natural persons." (Complaint! 

5) The States' term "schizophrenia patients" may fairly be read 

to inclu~e (i) those who have personally purchased CLOZARIL* 

therapy; (ii) those who have received CLOZARIL* therapy but have 

not personally purchased it; and (iii) those who have not 

received CLOZARIL~ therapy. As set forth above, only CLOZARIL~ 

therapy purchasers can allege an antitrust injury under the 

Clayton Act. Nowhere do the states represerit that even one 

specific natural person is a direct purchaser of CLOZARIL* 

therapy. The states accordingly have not alleged standing as 

parentes patriarum on behalf of a single schizophrenia patient. 

Because the Complaints do not aver that any natural 

person in each state has expended personal property to purchase 

CLOZARIL~ therapy, whether the property of any state resident has 

been injured by an alleged antitrust violation remains 

speculative. See Reading Industries. Inc. v. Kennecott Copper 

Corp., 631 F.2d 10, 13-14 (2d Cir. 1980), cert. denied, 452 U.S. 

916 (1982) (holding that Illinois Brick indicates that the 

antitrust laws "exclude claims based on conjectural theories of, 

injury and attenuated economic causality...•"); Triple M 

Roofing, 753 F.2d at 247; de Atucha, 608 F. Supp. at 516. Under 

McCready, 457 U.S. at 474-78, and Associated General Contractors, 

459 U.S. at 542, an entity is not the proper plaintiff in an 
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antitrust suit if his injury is too remote or if permitting his 

claim to stand would create the possibility of duplicative 

recoveries. Here, the states, far from alleging direct injury, 

imply that most CLOZARIL~ therapy recipients are not direct 

purchasers.' II[T]reble damages under § 4 of the Clayton Act are 

only	 recoverable by those directly overcharged by violators of 

the antitrust laws . . . ." New York v. Dairylea Cooperative, 

Inc., 570 F. Supp. 1213, 1215 (S.D.N.Y. 1983) (dismissing parens 

patriae suit on behalf ~f indirect purchasers), citing Illinois 

Brick, 431 U.s. 720. state government agencies and insurance 

companies! are the entities directly affected by the overcharges 

,	 "Many schizophrenia patients depend in part on 
governmental entities for medical services. 1I 

(Complaint ~ 18) "At least 80% of the 
ins~itutionalized patients identified by Sandoz as 
suitable candidates for CLOZARIL~ treatment are treated 
at pUblic expense[,]" and "[m]ost in-patient treatment 
of schizophrenia occurs in state funded and operated 
institutions."', (Complaint " 21-22) 

Rule 17(a) of the Federal Rules of civil Procedure 
requires that "[eJvery action shall be prosecuted in 
the name of the real party in interest." When an 
insurer-subrogee "has paid an entire loss suffered by 
the insured, it is the only real party in interest and 
must sue in its own name." United states v. Aetna 
Casualty & surety Co., 338 U.S. 366, 380-81 (1949). 
The same principle applies to all government agencies 
which ultimately pay for Clozaril~ therapy. In re 
Antibiotic Antitrust Actions, 333 F. Supp. 278, 280 
(S.D.N.Y. 1971) (states "stand in the shoes of" drug 
users reimbursed by welfare programs); cf. Hatcher v. 
Heckler, 772 F.2d 427, 428 n.3 (8th Cir. 1985) (noting 
district court's determination that a Medicare patient 
who had been fully reimbursed IIhad suffered no injury 
and, thus, lacked standing"). To the extent that any 
insurance companies or government agencies have paid 
for CLOZARIL~ therapy, they are the real parties which 
purportedly have suffered injury to property. 

12 



alleged, so patients who have not received CLOZARIL~ therapy or 

purchased it with their own funds have suffered no direct injury. 

These entities, however, are not natural persons, and the states 

as parentes patriarum cannot represent them. See 15 U.S.C. § 15c 

(a) (1).9 

Similarly, "natural persons" or "schizophre~ia 

patients" who have not received CLOZARIL~ therapy lack antitrust 

standing because their injuries are too remote to warrant 

recovery under the antitrust laws. Nonpurchasers have been 

denied standing because their injuries were too tenuous and 

speculative: "If nonpurchasers who have never dealt with a 

defendant could recover, a seemingly unlimited number of 

plaintiffs could assert a virtually unlimited quantity of lost 

purchases, perhaps exceeding the potential output of the entire 

industry." Montreal Trading Ltd. v. Arnax Inc., 661 F.2d 864, 

867-68 (loth Cir. 1981), cert. denied, 455 U.S. 1001 (1982) 

(citing Illinois Brick, 431 U.S. at 730); Mid-West Paper Products 

Co. v. continental Group, Inc., 596 F.2d 573, 586-87 (3d Cir. 

1979) . 

Even if the States had alleged antitrust injury to 

them, "schizophrenia patients" or "other natural persons" would 

not be the proper plaintiffs under Cargill, 479 U.S. at 110 n.5. 

The facts pled demonstrate that actual purchasers are the only 

For the same reasons, the Attorneys General cannot seek 
redress for any alleged damages to "actual and 
potential competitors of defendants" and "hospitals, 
laboratories, and businesses". See,~, Complaint !! 
56, 62, and 69. 
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proper plaintiffs. (See Complaint! 45) Purchasers constitute 

an identifiable class whose self-interest motivates them to 

enforce the antitrust laws. Of those allegedly injured by an 

antitrust violation, only the ones "who can most efficiently 

vindicate the purposes of the antitrust laws have antitrust 

;standing .• . ." In re Industrial Gas Antitrust Litigation, 681 

F.2d at 516 (and cases cited therein). Nonpaying CLOZARIL~ 

therapy recipients have no standing to sue for injuries which 

affected only the property of the paying government agencies and 

insurance companies. 

D.	 The Attorneys General as parente~~atriarum Cannot 
Recover Under the Antitrust Laws for Injuries 
to the States' Economy and General Welfare 

The States purport to sue "on behalf of [their] economy 

and general welfare;" as a matter of law, a state cannot recover 
.. 

damages under the antitrust laws for injuries to its general 

economy. Hawaii v. Standard Oil Co. of California, 405 U.S. 251, 

265 (1972). Standard IOil was a parens patriae suit seeking 

damages under Section 1 of the Sherman Act for conduct which 

allegedly "injured and adversely affected the economy and 

prosperity of the State . II Id. at 255. Affirming 

-dismissal of that portion of the complaint, the Supreme Court 

explained that injury to a state's general economy "is no more 

than a reflection of injuries to the· 'business or property' of 

consumers, for which they may recover themselves under § 4." Id. 

at 264. Authorizing the recovery of such speculative damages 

"would open the door to duplicative recoveries." Id. at 263-64. 
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Thus, to the extent that the states purport to seek damages for 

alleged injury to their general welfare and economy, the actions 

must be dismissed. 

II
 

THE STATES FAIL TO ALLEGE
 
THE SUBSTANTIVE ELEMENTS OF A VIOLATION
 

OF SECTION 1 OF THE SHERMAN ACT
 

The States' three claims alleged under Section 1 of the 

Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, are deficient as a matter of law. As 

to the first two claims, for allegedly tying the sale of 

clozapine to the purchase of "blood drawing, case administration, 

data base, and dispensing services," and for allegedly fixing the 

price of CLOZARIL~, the States fail to assert facts supporting 

the existence of entities capable of tying or price fixing in 

violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. (Complaint it 11, 40) 

The tying claim also fails for the independent reason that the 

States do not adduce that a substantial amount of commerce in the 

"tied" services was affected. The price fixing claim fails for 

the additional reasons that the States do not plead a vertical 

distribution arrangement and do not allege that Caremark agreed 

to adhere to Sandoz's suggested price. In their fourth claim, 

for "general restraint of trade," the States simply fail to 

enumerate any ground for relief beyond those alleged in the 

defective first, second and third claims. 
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A.	 The States Aver a Relationship That is 
Exempt from the Prohibitions Against 
Tying and Price Fixing 

The facts as pled describe at most an agency 

relationship, the antitrust equivalent of one entity, rather than 

an independent reselling relationship.tO The States plead that 

Caremark does not retain the purchase price for CPMS, but instead 

that	 "Caremark receives a fee from Sandoz for its services under 

CPMS." (Complaint i 41) This type of "contract [Which] provides 

for payment to [the distributor] in the form of commission and 

payment to [the manufacturer] on the formula of [the 

distributor's] receipts less commission [is] consistent with a 

10	 The States assert that: II [t]he Caremark Contract 
defines the relationship between Caremark and Sandoz as 
that of independent contractors, not agents or 
partners. II (Complaint i 40) However, that the 
Commercial Agreement provides that Caremark is an 
independent contractor is not dispositive. Grand Union 
Co. v. FTC, 300 F.2d 92, 97 n.14 (2d Cir. 1962) ("Under 
the antitrust laws the difference between a 'sale' and 
an agency relationship is not simply one of form, but 
may be 'outcome-determinative' ") (citing united States 
v. General Electric Co., 272 U.S. 476 (1926); Loom 
Crafters. Inc. v. New Central Jute Mills Co., 1971 
Trade Case. (CCH) i 73,734,91,073 (S.D.N.Y. 1971) ("In 
determining whether a principal-agent or a principal­
principal relationship exists, the courts have ignored 
the technical te~s with which the parties describe 
themselves in legal documents and have scrutinized the 
substance and conduct of the legal relationshipll); ­
North American Produce v. Nick Penachio Co .. Inc., 705 
F. Supp. 746, 750 (S.N.D.Y. 1988) (Il[A party] may be an 
independent businessman, but for antitrust purposes, it 
may be an agent ll ). Further, the passage of title is 
not a factor in defining the substance of the 
relationship. Fuch Sugars & Syrups. Inc. v. Amstar, 
602 F.2d 1025 (2d cir.), cert. denied, 444 U.S. 917 
(1979); Morrison v. Murray Biscuit Co., 797 F.2d 1430, 
1436 (7th Cir. 1986) (IIPassage of title has lost its 
magic in commercial law, see, ~, UCC § 2-509(2); why 
should it retain it in antitrust law?"). 
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------- -----

principal-agent relationship rather than that of principal-

principal." Loom Crafters, Inc., 1971 Trade Cas. ! 73,734 at 

91,073; see also Ally Gargano/MCA Advertising, Ltd. v. Cooke 

Properties, Inc., 1989-2 Trade Cas. (CCH) ! 68,817,62,277 

(S.D.N.Y. 1989) ("retention of profits provision" precluded 

finding of econo~ically independent business relationship"). 

"only if the structure of the relationship between two 

entities is one of independence, rather than agency, can the 

conduct be labeled concerted within the meaning of [Section 

1]."11 Ally Gargano/MCA, 1989-2 Trade Cas. ! 68,817, 62,276 

(citing United States v. General Electric, 272 U.S. 476); Ryko 

ManUfacturing Co. v. Eden Services, 823 F.2d 1215, .1223 (8th Cir. 

1987), cert. denied, 484 U.S. 1026 (1988) (An agent is "incapable 

of engaging in an antitrust conspiracy with [its] corporate 

principal. ") 

A tying arrangement by a single entity is not 

"proscribed by section 1 of the Sherman Act." McKenzie v. Mercy 

Hospital of Independence, Kansas, 854 F.2d 365, 368 (10th eire 

1988). Similarly, the prohibition on vertical price agreements 

"does not apply to restrictions on price to be charged by one who, 
is in reality an agent of, not a buyer from, the manufacturer." 

Business Electronics Corp. v. Sharp Electronics Corp., 485 U.S. 

717, 733 (1988) (citing United states v. General Electric Co., 

272 U.S. 476 (1926». 

II Section 1 of the Sherman Act proscribes only concerted 
conduct. Copperweld Corp. v. Independence Tube Corp., 
476 U.S. 752, 767-68 (1984). 

17 
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since the states aver that Sandoz (and not Caremark) 

retains the purchase price of "CPMS and that Caremark receives a 

fee for its services, the states cannot meet the concerted action 

requirement of Section 1 of the Sherman Act. See Ally 

Gargano/MCA, 1989-2 Trade Cas. , 68,817, 62,276-78; North 

American Produce Corp., 705 F. Supp. at 750 (When plaintiff's own 

allegations concerning defendant's distribution system describe 

an "agency" relationship, a claim for vertical price fixing 

should be dismissed.) Since the States essentially contend that 

Caremark is not an independent reseller of CPMS, the tying and 

vertical price fixing claims must fail. 

B.	 The States Fail to Allege That the Purported Tying 
Arrangement Has Had a Substantial Effect on Commerce 

The States assert that Sandoz, Caremark and unnamed 

"co-conspirators" "have illegally tied the sale of the drug 

clozapine" "to blood drawing, case administration, data base, 

dispensing, and laboratory services ... " (Complaint! 54) To 

state a claim for a tie-in that violates section 1 of the Sherman 

Act, the States must allege: (i) a tying product; (ii) a tied 

product; (iii) facts which would establish actual coercion by the , 
seller that forced the buyer to accept the tied produce; (iv) 

sufficient economic power in the tying market to coerce purchaser 

acceptance of the tied product; (v) anticompetitive effects in 

the tied market; and (vi) the involvement of a "'not 

18
 



insubstantial' volume of commerce in the 'tied' market." 

Gonzalez v. st. Margaret's Ho~pital Housing Development Fund 

Corp., 880 F. 2d 1514, 1516-1517 (2d Cir. 1989) (emphasis added). 

The states fail to state a claim for tying because they 

do not allege that "a substantial volume of commerce in the 

'tied' product is restrained." Times-picayune Publishing Co. v. 

United States, 345 U.S. 594, 608-09 (1953); see also Gonzalez, 

880 F. 2d at 1518 (2d Cir. 1989); ("Jefferson Parish l1 [requires] 

a plaintiff to prove . . . that the tie impairs competition in 
-

the tied ~arket and forecloses a substantial volume of commerce 

in that market.") (emphasis added). The States do not allege any 

specific amount of commerce affected by the tie-in ·in the 

allegedly tied market--the market for blood drawing, case 

administration data base, dispensing and laboratory services. 

They certainly do not aver facts showing that the amount of 

commerce affected is substantial in any state. 

In defining the market for the blood services which 

they contend constitutes the "tied" product, the States aver only 

that the "geographic market is normally the locality of the 

patient or treating phy,sician." (Complaint!, 13, 14) They make 

no allegations at all about the degree or amount of the alleged 

tie's effect on the tied market. They set forth neither the size 

of the total market nor the percentage or amount tied. The 

Supreme Court defines "substantial" as "substantial enough in 

12	 Jefferson Parish Hospital Dist. No.2 v. Hyde, 466 U.S. 
2, 16 (1984). 
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terms of dollar-volume so as not to be merely de minimis.... -

Fortner Enterprises, Inc. v. united states Steel Corp., 394 U.S. 

495, 501 (1969); cf. Gonzalez, 880 F.2d at 1518 (calculation of 

effect on commerce must take into account the number of consumers 

who would stay with the original provider even absent the tie). 

This circuit requires that "[f]or purposes of determining 

sUbstantiality, a court measures the total volume of .sales tied 

by the "policy" under challenge, not merely the portion of this 

total accounted for by the particular plaintiff who brings suit." 

Gonzalez,' 880 F.2d at 1518. While courts have permitted a range 

of dollar amounts, from $60,800 to millions, to constitute 

"substantiality," a complete absence of specific f~cts supporting 

the "substantiality" element renders a claim deficient as a 

matter of law. D This Court, however, is not called upon to 

assess whether the degree of commerce affected is "substantial" 

as a matter of fact. The Courxneed only look to the Complaints 

to perceive that the absence of factual allegations means that as 

a matter of law, the states cannot meet the substantiality 

element for a tying claim. 

C.	 The states' ~ertical Price Fixing 
Claims Fail as a Matter of Law 

The states' vertical price fixing allegations are 

deficient for three reasons, each of which mandates dismissal. 

First, although they purport to state a claim for vertical price 

The Complaints do not state, for example, how many of 
alleged competing service providers reside in each 
state, or how many others might compete absent the 
alleged tie. . 

20 
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fixing, the states fail to allege facts supporting the existence 

of a vertical distribution ar~angement. Second, as described 

above, regardless of the existence of a vertical relationship, 

the States' allegations describe a relationship that is exempt 

from the prohibition on vertical price maintenance. 14 Finally, 

under any characterization of the relationship, the states allege 

no facts to support their claim that Caremark agreed to adhere to 

the retail price suggested by Sandoz. 

1.	 The States fail to allege the existence 
of a vertical distribution arrangement 

In the Second Claim for Relief, the States assert that 

"Sandoz, Caremark, and their co-conspirators have .continually 

engaged in a vertical price fixing agreement relating to the sale 

of the drug CLOZARIL~, blood drawing, case administration, data 

base, dispensing, and laboratory services in violation of Section 

1 of· the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1." (Complaint! 60) 

To state a claim for-vertical price fixing, the States 

must first allege a vertical relationship among the parties to 

the alleged agreement. Cf. DuPont Glore Forgan, Inc. v. American 

Telephone & Telegraph Co., 437 F. Supp. 1104 (S.D.N.Y. 1977), 
•

aff'd without opinion sub nom. American Telephone & Telegraph Co. 

v. United states, 578 F.2d 1366 (2d cir.) and aff'd without 

See discussion in section II, subpart A. Regardless of 
the existence of an agency relationship, the states 
fail to allege facts that would support a reselling 
relationship vulnerable to a charge of vertical price 
fixing. See Medical Arts Pharmacy v. Blue Cross & Blue 
Shield, 518 F. Supp. 1100, 1107 (D. Conn. 1981), aff'd, 
675 F.2d 502 (2d Cir. 1982). 

21 
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opinion, 578 F.2d 1367 (2d Cir.), cert. denied, 439 U.S. 970 

(1978). vertical relationships are those among parties at 

different levels of the market structure (e.g., manufacturer­

distributor, wholesaler-retailer) .IS United states v. Topco 

Assocs., Inc., 405 U.S. 596, 608 (1972); see, ~., Albrecht v. 

The Herald Co., 390 U.S. 145 (1968); United states v. Parke, 

Davis & Co., 362 U.S. 29. 

The States, however, allege facts showing that both 

Sandoz and Caremark operate at the same level. The States 
-

contend that "Sandoz has set the resale price," and "Caremark has 

agreed to Sandoz's resale price", "of the tied CLOZARIL~/CPMS 

package •.• at $172 per week per patient." (Complaint" 37, 

61) They allege further that Sandoz manufactures CLOZARIL~, and 

that "Caremarkprovides blood drawing, case administration, data 

base, and dispensing services required for CPMS." (Complaint, 

40) Thus, the alleged CPMS "services" originate with Caremark. 16 

IS	 The term "manufacturer" refers to firms at the first 
level of the market structure regardless of whether 
they develop products or services. The term 
"distributor" refers to firms authorized by the 
"manufacturer" td distribute products or services at 
the second level of the market structure. ABA 
Antitrust Section, Monograph-No. 2, vertical 
Restrictions Limiting Intrabrand Competition (1977). 

The States allege that "Caremark resells CLOZARIL~ and 
CPMS ••. " (Complaint, 61) However, this allegation 
is at odds with the States' other factual assertions 
that CPMS "services" originate with Caremark (Complaint 
! 40) and that "Caremark receives a fee from Sandoz 
[not from CPMS purchasers] for its services under 
CPMS." (Complaint! 41) (emphasis added) These 
assertions preclude the States from proving that 
Caremark is a reseller of CPMS. 

22 
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Since Caremark cannot be a reseller of CPMS services, the states 

cannot establish a vertical arrangement that would be susceptible 

to a	 charge of price fixing. See Medical Arts Pharmacy, 518 F. 

Supp. at 1107. 

Moreover, Sandoz and Caremark each contribute discrete 

components to CPMS; hence, their functions are parallel, not 

vertical. Non-competing parties at the same market level are 

incapable of price fixing. Cf. Broadcast Music. Inc. v. Columbia 

Broadcasting, 441 U.S. 1, 23 (1979). ("Joint ventures and other 

cooperative:arrangements are also not usually unlawful, at least 

not as price fixing schemes, where the agreement on price is 

necessary to market the product at all. "). The Stat.es have 

failed to assert the existence of an agreement on price for any 

one product or service that flows vertically from Sandoz to 

Caremark. 17 Accordingly, the States' Second Claim for Relief 

fails to state a cause of action for vertical price fixing under 

Section 1 of the Sherman Act. 

2.	 The States fail to allege facts supporting 
the claim that Caremark agreed to adhere to 
Sandoz's suggested price 

The States assert that Sandoz and Caremark "engaged in , 
a vertical price fixing agreement relating to the sale of the 

drug CLOZARIL~, blood drawing, case administration, data base, 

By definition, vertical price fixing requires a 
vertical relationship. Caremark is aware of no court 
which has found a vertical price fixing violation in 
the absence a vertical distribution system. 

23 
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dispensing, and laboratory services in violation of Section 1 of 

the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1." (Complaint! 60) However, to 

sustain a claim for vertical price fixing, a plaintiff must 

demonstrate: (1) an express or implied agreement; or (2) the 

securing of actual adherence to prices by coercive means. 

Yentsch v. Texaco, Inc., 630 F.2d 46 (2d Cir. 1980). A supplier 

does not engage in vertical price fixing when it suggests or even 

encourages its dealers to follow suggested resale prices. United 

States v. Colgate & Co., 250 U.S. 300 (1919); Parke, Davis & Co., 

362 U.S. 29~ (1960); Susser v. Carvel Corp., 332 F.2d 505 (2d Cir. 

1964). Moreover, a distributor is free to conform to a 

manufacturer's suggested price. Monsanto Co. v. Spray-Rite 

Service Corp., 465 U.S. 752, 761 (1984); Sample Inc. v. Pendleton 

Woolen Mills, Inc., 704 F. Supp. 498, 501 (S.D.N.Y. 1989). Thus, 

to establish vertical price fixing, a plaintiff must demonstrate 

more than that the "distributor conformed to the suggested 

price"; the plaintiff must establish both "that the distributor 

communicated its acquiescence or agreement, and that this was 

sought by the manufacturer." Monsanto, 465 U.S. at 764 n.9. 

The States assert only that: "Caremark has agreed to 
, 

Sandoz's resale price ... " (Complaint! 61) "[T]o adequately 

state a vertical price fixing violation ([i.e.] 'resale price 

maintenance'), plaintiff must allege at least some facts which 

would support an inference that the parties have agreed that one 

will set the price at which the other will resell the product or 
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service to third parties."ls Cayman Exploration Corp. v. United 

Gas Pipe Line Corp., 1989-1 Tra~e Cas. (CCH) ! 68,552, 60,968 

(loth Cir. 1989) (emphasis added). The states fail to allege g 

single fact that would support their conclusory allegation of an 

agreement on price. Accordingly, this Court must dismiss Count 

II of the Complaints. 

III
 

THE STATES' THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
 
IS DIRECTED SOLELY AT SANDOZ
 

" 
The States allege in their abbreviated Third Claim for 

Relief that Sandoz "monopolized the relevant market for the drug 

clozapine." 19 They assert that "defendant Sandoz and -others 

acting in concert with it" (Complaint! 66) effected "Sandoz's 

monopolization" "by the means and overt acts described above. "20 

(Complaint " 66, 67) As is logical, since Sandoz and not 

Caremark holds the license for CLOZARIL~, nowhere in the claim is 

Caremark mentioned or even included by implication. 

18	 Consideration of a motion to dismiss requires the court 
to accept all well pleaded facts as true. However, 
vague or conclusory allegations are entitled to no such 
assumption. Swanson v. Bixler, 750 F.2d 810, 813 (lOth 
Cir. 1984); see also Petroleum for Contractors. Inc. v. 
Mobil Oil Corp., 1978-2 Trade Cas. (CCH) ! 62,151, 
75,082 (S.D.N.V. 1978). 

19 The States' other claims for relief are directed toward 
both Sandoz and Caremark. (Complaint!! 54, 60, and 
73) 

20	 To the extent that the States may contend that they 
have asserted a monopolization claim against Caremark 
as one of these unidentified "others," the claim fails 
for lack of specificity in identifying the parties, as 
set forth in Part I, supra, and Part IV, infra. 
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n[T]o state a claim for relief, actions brought against 

mUltiple defendants must clearly specify the claims with which 

each particular defendant is ch'arged." Wright and Miller, 

Federal Practice & Procedure: civil 2d § 1248 at. 314 (1990); see 

also Mathews v. Kilroe, 170 F. Supp. 416, 417 (S.D.N.Y. 1959) 

(dismissing co~plaint that failed to "indicate clearly the 

defendants against whom relief [was] sought"). Since the States' 

monopolization claim is not directed at Caremark, this court must 

dismiss the Third Claim for Relief as to Caremark. 

IV
 

THE STATES' GENERAL RESTRAINT OF TRADE CLAIM ASSERTS NO
 
INDEPENDENT BASIS FOR RELIEF AND IS VAGUE
 

The States' fourth claim alleging a "general restraint 

of trade" fails to enumerate any independent ground entitling 

plaintiffs to relief, and thus requires dismissal. Rule 8(a) (2) 

of the Federal Rules of civil Procedure. The claim merely 

repeats and restates the allegations of the States' other 

defective Sherman Act claims. 

Apart from its failure to allege any separate basis for 

relief, the vague, conclusory language of Count IV mandates 

dismissal. 21 One ­cannot state a claim under the antitrust laws 

"by merely alleging a bare legal conclusion; if the facts 'do not 

at least outline or adumbrate' a violation of the Sherman Act, 

21 See Associated General contractors, 459 U.S. at 528 
n.17 ("certainly in a case of this magnitude, a 
district court must retain the power to insist upon 
some specificity in pleading before allowing a 
potentially massive factual controversy to proceed.") 
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the plaintiffs 'will get nowhere merely by dressing them up in 

the language of antitrust. '" Car Carriers. Inc. v. Ford Motor 

Co., 745 F.2d 1101, 1106 (7th Cir. 1984) (quoting Sutliff. Inc. v. 

Donovan Companies Inc., 727 F.2d 648, 654 (7th Cir. 1984»; see 

also Heart Disease Research Foundation v. General Motors Corp., 

463 F.2d 98, 100 (2d Cir. 1972) ("a bare bones statement of 

conspiracy or of injury under the antitrust laws without any 

supporting facts permits dismissal. ") • 

v 

THE FATAL DEFECTS IN THE STATE LAW ANTITRUST CLAIMS 
ELIMINATE FEDERAL JURISDICTION OVER THESE ACTIONS 

The doctrine of pendent jurisdiction requires dismissal 

of state claims if federal claims are dismissed before trial. 

United States Mineworkers v. Gibbs, 383 U.S. 715, 727 (1966). 

Since the federal claims herein require dismissal as a matter of 

law, this Court lacks jurisdiction over the state claims. 

Moreover, the States' claims brought under state 

antitrust statutes are no less deficient than their parallel 

federal claims. Twenty states purport to allege claims under 

state versions of the Sherman Act. 22 Three of these also assert, 
violations of state versions of Section 3 of the Clayton Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 14. n Five states24 assert violations of state statutes 

22	 california, Colorado, Connecticut, Florida, Maine, 
Maryland, Minnesota, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New 
York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, south Dakota, 
Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Virginia, West Virginia and 
Wisconsin. 

n	 California, Connecticut and Texas. 
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akin to the Federal Trade Commission ("F.T.C.") Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§ 45. Washington and Iowa assert no state claims. 

A.	 The state Claims, Like the Federal Ones, Are 
Deficient as a Matter of Antitrust Law 

The defects in the states' federal claims are inherent 

in their (fatally flawed) state claims. Half of the states 

purport to allege pendent claims arising under state statutesU 

that track the language of Sherman Act sections 1 and 2, 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1, 2. The law of these states provides that these 

statutes be interpreted in light of analogous federal law.~ 

Since the States' federal Sherman Act claims fail to state causes 

of action, the concomitant claims under the statutes of 

Connecticut, Florida, Maryland, New Hampshire, New Jersey, 

Oregon, South Dakota, Texas, Utah, Virginia, West Virginia and 

Wisconsin must be dismissed. 

24	 California, Maine, Massachusetts, North Carolina and 
Pennsylvania. 

U	 Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 35-26 to 27; Fla. Stat. §§ 542.18 
to .19; Md. Com. Law Code Ann. §§ 11-204(A) (1) to (2); 
N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. §§ 356:2 to 3; N.J. Stat. Ann. §§ 
56:9-3 to 4a; Or. Rev. Stat. §§ 646.725, 646.730; S.D. 
Codified Laws Ann. §§ 37-1-3.1 to .2; Tex. Bus. & Com. 
Code Ann. §§ 15.05(a) to (b); Utah Code Ann. § 76-10­
914; Va. Code Ann. § 59.1-9.5: W. Va. Code §§ 47-18-3; 
Wis. Stat. §§ 133.03(1) to (2). 

26	 Elida, Inc. v. Harmor Realty Corp., 177 Conn. 218, 413 
A.2d 1226, 1230 (Conn. 1979); Fla. Stat. § 542.32; Md. 
Com. Law Code Ann. § 11-202(A) (2); N.H. Rev. Stat. Ann. 
§ 356:14; N.J. Stat. Ann. § 56:9-18; Or. Rev. Stat. § 
646.715(2); S.D. Codified. Laws. Ann. § 37-1-22; Tex. 
Bus. & Com. Code Ann. § 15.04; Utah Code Ann. § 76-10­
926; Va. Code Ann. § 59.1-9.17; W. Va. Code § 47-18-16; 
John Mohr & Sons, Inc. v. Johnke, 55 Wis. 2d 402, 198 
N.W.2d 363, 367-68 (1972). 
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The pendent claims of six other states allege 

violations of state antitrust laws that were patterned after the 

Sherman Act,27 and are interpreted using Sherman Act precedent. u 

Since the States' federal Sherman Act claims fail-to state a 

cause of action, the comparable claims under the statutes of 

California,~ Colorado, Minnesota,3~ New York, North Carolina3l and 

Ohio	 must be dismissed. 

27 Cal.	 Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 16720, 16726; Colo. Rev. 
Stat. § 6-4-101; Minn. Stat. §§ 325D.51-52; N.C. Gen. 
Stat. §§ 75-1 to 2, 75-5(b) (7); N.Y. Gen. Bus. Law § 
340;	 Ohio Rev. Code Ann. §§ 1331.01 to .04. 

28	 See State v. Duluth Bd. of Trade, 107 Minn. 506, 121 
N.W. 395, 399 (1909), limited by Campbell v. Motion 
Picture Operators' Union, 151 Minn. 220, 186 N.W. 781 
(1922): Anheuser-Busch. Inc. v. Abrams, 71 N.Y. 2d 327, 
525 N.Y.S.2d 816, 820 (N.Y. 1988); C. K. & J. K.. Inc. 
v. Fairview Shopping Center, 63 Ohio St. 2d 201, 407 
N.E.2d 507, 509 (Ohio 1980); People v. North Ave. 
Furniture & Appliance. Inc., 645 P.2d 1291, 1294-96 
(Colo. 1982); Cameron v. New Hanover Memorial Hospital, 
Inc., 58 N.C. App. 414, 293 S.E.2d 901, 918 (N.C. App.) 
appeal dismissed, petition denied, 307 N.C. 127, 297 
S.E.2d 399 (1982); Madison-Cablevision v. City of 
Morganton, 325 N.C. 634, 386 S.E.2d 200, 213 (N.C. 
1989). Chicago Title Ins. Co. v. Great western Fin. 
Corp., 69 Cal. 2d 305,444 P.2d 481, 487 (Cal. 1968); 
Marin County Bd. of Realtors. Inc. v. Palsson, 15 Cal. 
2d 920-25, 549 P.2d 833 (Cal. 1976). 

29	 In California, a pleading fails to state a claim under 
the Cartwright Act absent an allegation of a purpose to 
restrain trade and of an injury to plaintiff's business 
traceable to defendant's actions in furtherance of that 
purpose. Jones v. H. F. Ahmanson & Co., 1 Cal. 3d 93, 
460 P.2d 464, 479 (Cal. 1969). California's complaint 
fails to allege that Caremark or Sandoz had such a 
purpose to restrain trade through their alleged tying 
arrangement. Furthermore, California alleges no injury 
to its "business." Thus, California's Complaint is 
fatally deficient. 

30	 Although Minnesota names Caremark in its "monopoly" 
claim it fails to plead any substantive elements of 
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Finally, although no court has interpreted the 

antitrust statutes of Maine or Tennessee, Maine Revised Statutes 

Annotated Title 10, §§ 110132 and 110233 and Tennessee Code 

Annotated § 47-25-101 closely resemble the Sherman Act, and the 

claims brought under them must be dismissed because the States' 

Sherman Act claims are legally deficient . 

. 
monopoiization or attempted monopolization as against 
Caremark. 

31	 North Carolina's Attorney General also alleges that 
defendants' activities are "contrary to North Carolina 
Constitution, Art. I, Sec. 34 •.. n (North Carolina 
Complaint ! 79) Article I of the North Carolina 
constitution provides that: "[p]erpetuities and 
monopolies are contrary to the genius of a free state 
and shall not be allowed." If this was intended to 
constitute a separate basis for relief, it does not. 
No North Carolina authority exis~s to establish the 
Constitutional prohibition on restraints of trade as a 
basis for relief separate from the state antitrust 
laws. Moreover, in support of this "monopolization" 
claim, North Carolina relies only on the allegations in 
its claim for monopolization against Sandoz. Since 
that claim is directed solely at Sandoz, North 
Carolina's concomitant state claim must be dismissed as 
to Caremark. ,
 

32 Maine describes its state claims as "Mini-Sherman Act" 
claims. (Maine Complaint, Fifth Claim for Relief). 
The statute reads in relevant part: "Every contract, 
combination in the form of trusts or otherwise, or 
conspiracy, in restraint of trade or commerce in this 
State is declared to be illegal. .. " 

33	 The statute reads in relevant part: "Whoever shall 
monopolize or attempt to monopolize or combine or 
conspire with any other person or persons to 
monopolize any part of the trade or commerce of this 
State . . • ." 
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B.	 The states' Pendent Claims Under 
statutes Analogous to the FTC Act 
MUst Also be Dismissed 

Five	 states assert pendent claims under state 

statutes34 patterned after Section 5 of the Federal Trade 

Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45. 35 State law provides that each 

34	 Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 17200, 17203, 17206: Me. 
Rev. Stat. Ann. tit. 5, § 207: Mass. Gen. L. ch. 93A, § 
2: N.C. Gen. Stat. § 75-1.1. 

35	 Pennsylvania alleges violations of "the Pennsylvania 
Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law, 73 
P.S. § 207-3 (sic] •.. " (Pennsylvania Complaint! 
77.) The Pennsylvania Attorney General appears to have 
intended to cite 73 Pa. Cons. Stat. §§ 201-1 to 3 which 
instruct that "[e]ngaging in any other fraudulent 
conduct which creates a likelihood of confusion or an 
unfair or deceptive practice or act... See Chatham 
Racquet Club v. Commonwealth, 116 Pa. Commw. 55,. 60, 
541 A.2d 51, 53 (1988), later appealed, 127 Pa. Commmw. 
209, 561 A.2d 354 (1989). To state a claim under this 
section requires establishment of these essential 
elements of fraudulent conduct: 

(i) a false representation of an existing factor: 
(ii) if the misrepresentation is innocently made, 
then it is actionable only if it relates to a 
matter material to the-transaction involved: while 
if the misrepresentation is knowingly made or 
involves a nonprivileged failure to disclose, 
materiality is not a requisite to the action: 
(iii) scienter, which may be either actual 
knowledge of a truth or falsity of the matter, or 
mere false information where a duty is imposed on 
a person by reison of special circumstances: (iv) 
reliance, which must be justifiable, so that 
common prudence or diligence could not have 
ascertained the truth: and (v) damage to the 
person relying thereon. 

127 Pa. Commw. at 209, 561 A.2d at 356. 

The Pennsylvania Complaint repeats the language of the 
statute without asserting the necessary elements 
required to demonstrate fraudulent conduct. 
Accordingly, Pennsylvania's claim under its Unfair and 
Deceptive Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Law 
must be dismissed. 
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of these statutes should be construed in light of section 5 

precedent developed under the Federal Trade Commission Act. 36 

Section 5 ot the Federal Trade Commission Act ("F.T.C. Act") 

purports to proscribe certain conduct beyond the scope of the 

Sherman and Clayton Acts' prohibitions. However, courts have 

interpreted the FTC Act not to reach conduct if lithe complained­

of conduct is similar to conduct that has survived an antitrust 

challenge. II Von Kalinowski, Antitrust Laws and Trade Regulation, 

§ 121.04 (Matthew Bender 1990); see also Russell Stover Candies 

v. FTC, 718.F.2d 256 (2d Cir. 1983) (resale price suggestions and 

unilateral refusal to deal with price cutter cannot be unlawful 

under the FTC Act because such conduct is lawful under the 

Sherman Act); Official Airlines Guide v. FTC, 630 F.2d 920 (2d 

Cir. 1980). 

The states allege under the "little FTC Acts" no "type" 

of conduct different from that asserted in their Sherman Act 

claims. since their Sherman Act-claims fail as a matter of law, 

their identical claims made under the "little FTC Acts" must also 

be dismissed. 

C. The Pendent state "Tying" Claims Must be Dismissed 

The Attorneys ~eneral of California, Connecticut and 

Texas allege tying arrangements purportedly violating their 

People v. National Research Company of California, 201 
Cal. App. 2d 765, 20 Cal. Rptr. 516, 522 (Cal. App. 3d 
Dist. 1962); Me. Rev. stat. Ann. Tit. 5, § 207(1); 
Mass. Gen. Laws ch. 93A, § 2(b); Hardy v. Toler, 218 
S.E.2d 342, 345 (N.C. 1975); Commonwealth v. Flick, 33 
Pa. Commw. 553, 382 A.2d 762, 765 (Pa. Commw. 1978). 
(N.C. 1975). 
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respective versions of Section 3 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

14. 37 However, under Section 3 ?f the Clayton Act, both the 

alleged tying and the allegedly tied products must be "goods"; 

neither may be a service. Reisner v. General Motors Corp., 511 

F. Supp. 1167, 1176-77 (S.O.N.Y. 1981), aff'd, 671 F.2d 91 (2d 

Cir~), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 858 (1982); Capital Temporaries 

Inc.	 v. Olsten Corp., 1974-2 Trade Cas. (CCH) ! 75,303 (2d Cir. 

1974). The States define CPMS to include only "services" as the 

tied	 product. (Complaint! 33) Neither Section 3 of the clayton 

Act nor the~mirroring state statutes, therefore, could apply to 

the arrangement alleged. 38 

CONCLUSION 

For all these reasons, Caremark respect~~lly moves this 

Court for an order dismissing all actions brought against it and 

for such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

37	 Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 16727; Conn. Gen. Stat. §35­
29; Tex. Bus. & Com. Code Ann. §15.05(c) • 

38	 Connecticut's Attorney General purports to allege a 
violation of § 35-29, which, unlike section 3 of the 
Clayton Act prohibits tying arrangements involving 
services as well as goods. Nevertheless, the Attorney 
General's claim under § 35 must be dismissed for 
failure to allege facts sufficient to support it: 
tying claims under both the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, 
and the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 14, require as an 
essential element "an anticompetitive effect on a not 
insubstantial amount of commerce." Reisner, 511 F. 
Supp. at 1175 n.16. As set forth in section II.B. 
above, the States here failed to meet this pleading 
requirement. Accordingly, Connecticut's Attorney 
General's claim under Section 35-29 of the Connecticut 
Antitrust Act must be dismissed. 
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DBFBJlDAH'1' CARBXARlt INC.'S REPLY HBHORAHDOX 
IN SUPPORT OF ITS HOTION TO DISHISS 

Defendant Caremark Inc. ("Caremark") respectfully sub­

mits this reply memorandum in support of its Motion to Dismiss. 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

The Response filed by the Attorneys General ("States") 

is a clear attempt to replead their complaint.1I Instead of 

addressing Caremark's arguments head-on, the States make a last-

minute proffer of "alternative pleadings." 

Apparently conceding the force of Caremark's argument 

that an agreement between Sandoz and Caremark cannot constitute 

11 Citations to the "Complaint" are to the complaint captioned 
Minnesota v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals Corp., 90 Civ. 8055. The 
other complaints filed by the other States, Commonwealths and the 
District of Columbia are virtually identical to the complaint 
filed by the Minnesota Attorney General. 



concerted action under Section 1 of the Sherman Act, the States 

now suggest a purported illegal "agreement" among Sandoz and 

CLOZARIL~ patients. This new theory, however, is as defective as 

the original and does not alleviate the States' failure to state a 

Section 1 Sherman Act claim. The States' most recent theory 

ignores the United States Supreme court's holding that the 

"victims" of an alleged restraint of trade are not participants in 

the so-called conspiracy. For this reason, and the other reasons 

discussed herein, the States' First and Second Claims For Relief 

should be dismissed. 

The States' Third Claim for Relief, which purports to 

state a monopolization claim, should meet a similar fate. Because 

the Complaint does not name Caremark as a monopolist or allege 

that Caremark engaged in any monopolistic conduct, it obviously is 

deficient. The States seek to "correct" these omissions by now 

asserting that Caremark has conspired to monopolize. This attempt 

to allege a totally new claim against Caremark should not be per­

mitted; a brief in opposition to a motion to dismiss is not a sur­

rogate for an amended complaint. 

ARGUMENT 

I 

THE STATES HAVE FAILED TO ALLEGE CONCERTED ACTION 

The States have failed to plead concerted action within 

the meaning of the Sherman Act because: (i) Caremark, which the 

States plead is an agent of Sandoz, cannot conspire with Sandoz; 

and (ii) patient acquiescence to the terms of the CLOZARIL~ 
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Patient Management System ("CPMS") cannot constitute an illegal 

agreement. Because the States have not adequately pleaded con­

certed action, an essential element of any Section 1 Sherman Act 

claim, their Section 1 claims should be dismissed.~ 

A.	 The States' Allegation That Caremark is
 
Sandoz's Agent Defeats Their conspiracy Claim
 

Although the States have alleged that "Caremark is an 

agent of Sandoz," they attempt to avoid the consequences of this 

admission by arguing that "Caremark, as an agent, would be jointly 

and severally liable for the acts in which it engaged." (Response 
-

at 18-19) This argument, however, ignores the fact that an agent 

is "incapable of engaging in an antitrust conspiracy with [its] 

corporate principal." Ryko Manufacturing Co. v. Eden Services, 

823 F.2d 1215, 1223 (8th Cir. 1987), cert. denied, 484 U.S. 1026 

(1988). ThUS, an agent cannot be found jointly and severally 

liable under the antitrust laws unless there is an underlying Sec­

tion	 1 viOlation based upon an illegal combination or conspiracy. 

V The states are incorrect in their assertion that mere "notice 
of . plaintiff's claim" is sufficient to withstand a motion to 
dismiss. (Response at 3) To survive a motion to dismiss, "a com­
plaint • • • must contain either direct or inferential allegations 
respecting all the material elements necessary to sustain a recov­
ery under ~ viable legal theory." Car Carriers. Inc. v. Ford 
Motor Co., 745 F.2d 1101, 1106 (7th.Cir. 1984); ~ also Cayman 
Exploration Corp. v. united Gas Pipe Line Co., 873 F.2d 1357, 1359 
(10th Cir. 1989) (lithe complaint must allege facts SUfficient, if 
they	 are proved, to allow the court to conclude that claimant has 
a legal right to relief") (emphasis added). Moreover, con­
sideration of a motion to dismiss requires the court to accept 
only	 well pleaded facts as true. Vague or conclusory allegations 
are entitled to no such presumption. Swanson v. Bixler, 750 F.2d 
810,	 813 (10th Cir. 1984). 
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Here, there can be no finding of illegal concerted conduct because 

the states already have. conceded that Caremark is Sandoz's agent. 

B.	 Patient Participation in CPMS Does Not
 
Constitute an "Agreement" under Section 1
 
of the Sherman Act
 

In an effort to salvage their tying claim, the States 

now argue that the concerted action "requirement [is] met when a 

patient (or payor) agreed [sic] to the purchase of CPMS." 

(Response at 19) This new gloss on the States' tying claim, how­

ever, does nothing for their cause. Because an alleged agreement 

between the purported victim and the perpetrator of the tie-in 

cannot satisfy the concerted action requirement, the States' tying 

claim still must fail. See McKenzie v. Mercy Hospital of Indepen­

dence, 854 F.2d 365 (loth Cir. 1988). In McKenzie, the Tenth Cir­

cuit unequivocally held that the action of a "single entity impos­

ing a tying arrangement on its customers • [is not] proscribed 

by section 1 of the Sherman Act."Y M. at 368. This rationale 

applies with equal force here: Sandoz's alleged coerced agreement 

with CPMS purchasers does not constitute an illegal tying agree­

ment under Section 1 of the Sherman Act. 

The Supreme Court's opinion in Fisher V. City of Berke­

~, 475 U.S. 260 (1986), supports this conclusion. In Fisher, 

Y contrary to the States' assertion, the McKenzie court never 
states that "the 'conspiracy' or 'agreement' element of a Section 
1 tying claim is usually inferred from the coerced 'agreement' 
between the entity imposing the tie and the purchaser who unwit­
tingly facilitates the illegal tie by purchasing the bundle." 
(Response at 19) Rat~her, the court in McKenzie "rejected the 
position • • • that the acquiescence of the victim of a tying 
arrangement may establish the needed contract or combination." W. 
Holmes, Antitrust Law Handbook § RD-5, p. 30 (1990). 
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the Court considered the price fixing implications of a rent ceil ­

ing imposed by the city of Berkeley. The Fisher appellants argued 

that the rent control ordinance was "a combination between [the 

city of Berkeley and its officials], on the one hand, and the 

property owners on the other." Id. at 267. The Court, however, 

rejected this alleged "combination" and held: 

[A]ppellants [have] misconstrue[d] the con­
certed-action requirement of § 1" [because] a 
restraint imposed unilaterally • . . does not 
become concerted-action within the meaning of 
the statute simply because it has a coercive 
effect upon the parties who must obey. 

Id. The Court concluded by holding that U[w]ithout this element 

of concerted action, [a defendant's conduct] cannot run afoul of 

§ 1." Id. Relying on this decision, the Third Circuit in Englert 

v. City of MCKeesport, 872 F.2d 1144 (3d Cir.), cert. denied, 110 

S. ct. 149 (1989), likewise has, held that mere acquiescence to a 

unilateral decision does not transform the challenged conduct into 

concerted action under section 1 of the Sherman Act. Id. at 1151­

52. 

The decisions in Fisher v. City of Berkeley, supra, and 

Englert v. City of McKeesport, sgpra, recognize that a "coerced 

agreement" between the entity imposing the tie and a purchaser 

does not satisfy Section liS concerted action requirement.!! 

!! In instances where some courts, have held that a defendant 
acting unilaterally could commit a tying violation, the parties 
typically have either relied upon Section 3 of the Clayton Act, 15 
U.S.C. § 14, which contains no concerted action requirement, or 
failed to contest the issue of concerted action. Moreover, to the 
extent these decisions purport to impose Section 1 liability for 
unilateral restraints, they have been effectively overruled by the 
Supreme Court's decisions in Fisher v. City of Berkeley, supra, 
and Monsanto Co. v. Spray-Rite services Corp., 465 U.S. 752, 761 
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Thus, the alleged acquiescence of CPMS patients to the purported 

tying arrangement cannot constitute an illegal agreement. Because 

the states have failed adequately to plead concerted action, their 

tying claim should be dismissed.2/ 

C.	 The Proscription on Vertical Price
 
Restraints Is Not Applicable to the
 
Sandoz-Caremark Relationship
 

The States' allegation that Caremark is Sandoz's agent 

similarly defeats their section 1 price fixing claim. The Supreme 

Court has held that the prohibition on vertical price agreements 

"does not apply to restrictions on price to be charged by one who 

is in reality an agent of, not a buyer from, the manufacturer." 

Business Electronics Corp. v. Sharp Electronics Corp., 485 U.S. 

717, 733 (1988) (citing United states v. General Electric Co., 272 

U.S.	 476 (1926».BI Accordingly, as Sandoz's agent in the distri ­

(1984) ("[i]ndependent action is not proscribed" by Section 1 of 
the Sherman Act). 

2/ The States also have confused the jurisdictional requirement 
that the conduct at issue affect interstate commerce with the 
Sherman Act's substantive requirement that a tie foreclose a 
"substantial volume of commerce in the tied market." The States 
allege that "the tie involves a not insubstantial amount of inter­
state commerce•••• " (Response at 20, citing Complaint! 55) 
(emphasis added) Contrary to the States' contention, Caremark 
does not contest subject matter jurisdiction under the Commerce 
Clause. S§§ McLain v. Real Estate Board of New Orleans. Inc., 444 
U.S. 232, 241-44 (1980). Rather, Caremark asserts that the States 
have failed to plead an essential element of its tying claim, 
namely, that "a substantial volume of commerce is foreclosed" in 
the tied product market. S§§ Jefferson Parish Hospital District 
No.2 v. ~, 466 U.S. 2, 16 (1984); 305 E. 24th Owners Corp. v. 
Parman Co., 714 F. Supp. 1296 (S.D.N.Y. 1989). The Complaint 
fails to meet this threshold requirement. 

BI Not surprisingly, the States have not even attempted to dis­
tinguish these controlling Supreme Court decisions. 
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bution of CLOZARIL~, Caremark is legally incapable of conspiring 

to maintain resale prices. 

D.	 The states Allege a Relationship That Is
 
Exempt from the Prohibitions Against
 
Tying and Price Fixing
 

The states alternatively argue that "Sandoz and Caremark 

are two separate entities that unreasonably restrained trade by 

agreeing to institute and continue the illegal tying arrangement." 

(Response at 20) In support of this conclusory allegation, the 

states claim that "[t]he Caremark Contract defines the rela­

tionship between Caremark and Sandoz as that of independent con­

tractors, not agents or partners." (Response at 20; Complaint 

, 40) However, "[i]n determining whether a principal agent or a 

principal-principal ralationship exists, courts consistently have 

ignored the technical terms with which the parties describe them­

selves in legal documents and have scrutinized the substance and 

conduct of the legal relationship." Loom Crafters. Inc. v. New 

Central Jute Mills Co., 1971 Trade Cas. (CCH) , 73,734 at 91,073 

(S.D.N.Y.). See also Grand Union Co. v. ~, 300 F.2d 92, 97 n.14 

(2d Cir. 1962). Thus, the States cannot avoid dismissal of their 

claims by simply relying on the defendants' contractual language. 

This Court has recognized that "only if the structure of 

the relationship between two entities is one of independence, 

rather than agency, can the conduct be labeled concerted within 

the meaning of [Section 1]." Ally Gargano/MCA Advertising. Ltd. 

v. Cooke Properties. Inc., 1989-2 Trade Cas. (CCH) , 68,817 at 

62,276 (S.D.N.Y.). Here, as in Ally Gargano, defendants are not 
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separate independent actors capable of engaging in concerted 

action that violates the antitrust laws. In Ally Gargano, this 

Court found that the requisite independence did not exist between 

two companies which had entered into a real estate lease. Defen­

dant Cooke Properties, which had leased office space to MCA, 

attempted to block a planned sublease by MCA. MCA in turn, chal­

lenged the lease provision arguing that Cooke's actions amounted 

to price fixing in violation of section 1 of the Sherman Act. 

This Court dismissed MCA's Section 1 claim holding that 

"a true agency relationship immunizes the parties from antitrust 

liability." Id. at 62,276. Because the lease required MCA "to 

surrender to Cooke any rent derived from a sublease that exceeds 

its own rental obligations to Cooke," the Court held that the par­

ties were not independent and capable of illegal concerted action: 

In view of the retention of profits provision, 
it is difficult to characterize MCA's role with 
respect to subleasing as remotely that of 
'entrepreneur' or 'independent businessman.' 

~. at 62,277 (emphasis added). 

In their Complaint, the states similarly allege that 

"Caremark receives a fee from Sandoz for its services under CPMS." 

(Complaint ! 41) As in the case of Ally Gargano, an agency rela­

tionship is created by virtue of Sandoz's and Caremark's contrac­

tual relationship as alleged by the States. Sandoz retains the 

purchase price and the attendant profits of CPMS, and Caremark 

only receives a fee from Sandoz for the services Caremark pro­
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vides. Thus, Caremark is Sandoz's agent and incapable of engaging 

in concerted conduct with its principal.1I 

The States have pleaded an agency relationship that is 

immune from antitrust liability under Section 1 of the Sherman 

Act. Accordingly, this Court should dismiss the States' First and 

Second Claims for Relief. See North American Produce v. Nick 

Penachio Co., 705 F. Supp. 746, 750 (E.D.N.Y. 1988). 

E.	 The States Have Failed to Allege Facts to Support 
Their vertical Price Fixing Allegations 

It is a well-established that a distributor is free to 

conform to a manufacturer's suggested price. Monsanto Co. v. 

spray-Rite service Corp., 465 U.S. 752, 761 (1984). Thus, to 

establish vertical price fixing, the States must demonstrate that 

Caremark "communicated its acquiescence or agreement, and that 

this was sought" by Sandoz. I,g. at 764 n.9. Ignoring the teach­

ings of Monsanto Co., the States have failed to plead any facts 

that evidence such an agreement.~ They merely conclude that 

"Sandoz sets the resale price." (Response at 25) 

11 The States also fail to distinguish Loom Crafters. Inc. v. 
New Central Jute Mills Co., supra, 1971 Trade Cas. at 91,073, 
which holds that a "contract [that] provides for payment to [the 
distributor] in the form of commission and payment to [the manu­
facturer] on the formula of [the distributor's] receipts less com­
mission [is] consistent with a principal-agent relationship, 
rather than that of principal-principal." 

~ The States' reference to paragraph 61 of the complaint does 
nothing for their case. (Response at 25) That paragraph contains 
only conclusions which are entitled to no presumption of validity 
on a motion to dismiss. See Swanson v. Bixler, supra, 750 F.2d at 
813. 
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The States also have made no attempt to distinguish 

Cayman Exploration Corp. v. United Gas Pipe Line Corp., supra, 873 

F.2d at 1360, which holds that "to adequately state a vertical 

price fixing viOlation ('resale price maintenance'), plaintiff 

must allege at least some facts which would support an inference 

that the parties have agreed that one will set the price at which 

the other will resell the product or service to third parties." 

(emphasis added in part) The Complaint contains no such facts. 

The states' Second Claim for Relief should be dismissed. 21 

II 

THE STATES HAVE NOT PLEADED A
 
MONOPOLIZATION CLAIM AGAINST CAREMARK
 

Despite the States' claims to the contrary, the States' 

monopolization claim is against Sandoz and Sandoz alone: 

Sandoz's monopolization consists of (1) leveraging 
its monopoly power over clozapine to gain competi­
tive advantage in the markets for blood drawing, 
case ~dministration, data base, dispensing, and 
laboratory services, and (2) extending and main­
taining its monopoly power over clozapine beyond 
its current five year exclusive marketing period. 

i/ The States also allege that "the allegation of a vertical 
distribution arrangement is completed when the States declare that 
'Caremark resells Clozaril and CPMS.'" (Response at 23) Yet, the 
States fail to allege any facts demonstrating that Caremark 
resells anything. Moreover, this allegation ignores the States' 
other allegation that "Caremark receives a fee from Sandoz for its 
services under CPMS." (Complaint! 41) Given the fact that the 
States admit that Sandoz reimburses Caremark for its CPMS ser­
vices, it follows that Caremark does not retain the purchase price 
for, and cannot be a reseller of, CLOZARIL. or CPMS. Because 
Caremark is not a reSeller of anything, the States cannot estab­
lish a vertical arrangement that would be susceptible to a charge 
of price fixing. See Medical Arts Pharmacy. Inc. v. Blue Cross & 
Blue Shield. Inc., 518 F. Supp. 1100, 1107 (D. Conn. 1981), aff'd, 
675 F.2d 502 (2d Cir. 1982). 

10 



(Complaint! 67; emphasis added) The Complaint fails to name 

Caremark as a monopolist and does not allege that Caremark engaged 

in any monopolistic conduct. 101 Because the states' Third Claim 

for Relief lacks "a statement of the pleader's entitlement to 

relief against" Caremark, it should be dismissed. New York v. 

Dairylea Cooperative. Inc., 570 F. Supp. 1213, 1217 (S.D.N.Y. 

1983) • ..ilI 

Confronted with this obvious deficiency, the states con­

coct an entirely new claim against Caremark. For the first time, 

they contend in their Response that "Caremark has conspired with 

Sandoz to monopolize the market for clozapine." (Response at 25) 

This newly-fashioned "conspiracy to monopolize claim," like their 

original monopolization claim, should be dismissed. This Court 

has recognized that "[i]t is a basic principle that a complaint 

may not be amended by the plaintiff's brief filed in opposition to 

a motion to dismiss." Telsat v. Entertainment & Sports Program­

.l.Q/ To support their new argument that "Caremark has conspired 
with Sandoz to monopolize the market for clozapine therapy" 
(Response at 25), the States rely on their allegation that 
"defendant Sandoz and others acting in concert with it have . . . 
monopolized the relevant market for the drug clozapine. n 

(Complaint, 66) This is a deficient pleading. "[F]ailure to 
identify the parties with whom [Sandoz] allegedly conspired ren­
ders these allegations insufficient to state a claim under [the 
Sherman Act]." Petroleum for Contractors. Inc. v. Mobil Oil 
Corp., 1978-2 Trade Cas. (CCH) , 62,151 at 75,080 (S.D.N.Y.). 

111 The States try to distinguish Mathews v. Kilroe, 170 F. Supp. 
416 (S.D.N.Y. 1959), by arguing that "[t]hat case involved a 
'strange, rambling document' drawn by a plaintiff pro se[.]" This 
distinction is meaningless. (Response at 27) Even a pro se 
plaintiff must "indicate clearly the defendants against whom 
relief is sought and the basis upon which the relief is sought 
against the partiCUlar defendants." li. at 417. The States have 
not met even this minimal pleading standard. 
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ming Network, 753 F. Supp. 109, 113 n.4 (S.D.N.Y. 1990). The 

states' Third Claim for Relief clearly does not state a basis for 

relief against Caremark under section 2 of the Sherman Act, and it 

should be dismissed. 11I 

III 

THE STATES LACK STANDING TO BRING THESE ACTIONS 

A. The States Have No standing as Parentes Patriarum 

To maintain standing as parentes patriarum, the States 

must allege that at least one resident in each state has suffered 

111 The States also contend that their "general restraint of 
trade claim (Fourth Claim for Relief) is well-pleaded" and should 
not be dismissed. (Response at 27) Yet they fail to cite a sin­
gle case which has recognized an independent claim for a "general 
restraint of trade." The cases cited by the States, Trans World 
Airlines. Inc. v. Hughes, 332 F.2d 602 (2d Cir. 1964), Radovich v. 
National Football League, 352 U.S. 445 (1957), and Federated 
pepartment stores. Inc. v. Grinnell Corp., 287 F. Supp. 744 
(S.D.N.Y. 1968), are not general restraint of trade cases. 
Moreover, Federated Department stores. Inc. v. Grinnell Corp., was 
decided on a motion to strike which allows the court to strike 
only immaterial, impertinent or scandalous matter. See Fed. R. 
Civ. P. 12{f). Recognizing the infirmities of their other claims, 
the States also contend that the general restraint of trade claim 
"allows the States to maintain an alternative antitrust cause of 
action grounded upon the rule of reason." (Response at 28) 
However, to survive a motion to dismiss under the rule of reason, 
the States "must allege facts establishing that the conduct of 
defendants resulted in harm to general competition in the market." 
Petroleum for Contractors. Inc., v. Mobil Qil Corp., supra, 1978-2 
Trade Cas. (CCH) at 75,083: ~ Al22 Alliance Shippers. Inc. v. 
Southern Pacific Transportation, 858 F.2d 567, 570 (9th Cir. 1988) 
("essential element of a section 1 violation under the rule of 
reason is injury to competition in the relevant market" citing 
National Society of Professional Engineers v. united States, 435 
U.S. 679, 690-91 (1978». The States' failure to allege such harm 
requires dismissal of this count. Moreover, as with their other 
Section 1 claims, the States' failure to plead concerted action 
condemns their general restraint of trade allegations. Telsat v. 
Entertainment & Sports Programming Network, supra, 753 F. Supp. at 
115. 

12 



injury to his or her property. 15 u.s.e. § 15c(a) (1). They have 
-

not done so. The Complaint contains no facts establishing that a 

single individual in any state directly purchased CLOZARIL* ther­

apy. The non-purchaser standing case relied upon by plaintiffs, 

Ware v. Trailer Mart. Inc., 623 F.2d 1150 (6th eire 1980), is 

inapposite. Unlike the present case, the plaintiff in Ware was 

allowed to sue because he suffered a direct monetary loss related 

to the tied product, i.e., the rent he paid on his mobile home 

space.1l/ In addition, Ware was decided before both of the 

Supreme Court's definitive standing cases, Blue Shield of Virginia 

v. McCready, 457 U.S. 465 (1982), and Associated General Contrac­

tors v. California State Council of Carpenters, 459 U.S. 519 

(1983), relied upon by Caremark. 

Failing to allege that state residents actually have 

suffered direct monetary losses, the States have no standing as 

parentes patriariu~.ljJ 

B.	 The States Fail to Allege the Elements
 
Necessary for Antitrust Standing
 

The States also have failed to allege that any state is 

a direct purchaser of CLOZARIL- therapy. The States' allegation 

11/ The states also have ignored other authority relied upon by 
Caremark, includinq Montreal Trading Ltd. v. Amax Inc., 661 F.2d 
864, 867-68 (10th Cir. 1981), which explicitly holds that non-pur­
chasers lack standinq to raise antitrust claims. 

l!/ The plaintiff in the related private class action case, 
Newell v. Sandoz Pharmaceuticals, 90 civ. 7724 (JFK) (filed Decem­
ber 3, 1990), has recognized his inability to represent a class 
includinq non-purchasers of CLOZARID- therapy, and has indicated 
his intention to delete non-purchasers from his class allegations. 
(Newell's Response to Caremark Inc.'s Motion to Dismiss at 4) 
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that they "purchase health care goods and services" neither estab­

lishes that they purchased CLOZARIL~ therapy directly, nor that 

these purchases caused them antitrust injury. (Response at 9) 

The only other allegation that the states can point to states that 

"the purchasers of Clozaril, including plaintiff and persons rep­

resented by plaintiff, are always charged the same price.. " 

(Response at 9, citing Complaint, 5) This allegation is equally 

infirm and does not remedy the States' failure to allege facts 

establishing that they are in fact direct purchasers of CLOZARIL~ 

therapy. 151 The States simply conclude that they are "direct pur­

chasers of CLOZARIL~" (Response at 10) and assume that this unsup­

ported assertion remedies the deficiencies in their complaint and 

otherwise satisfies the standing factors enunciated by the Supreme 

Court in Blue Shield of Virginia v. McCready, supra, and Associ­

ated General Contractors v. California state Council of Carpen­

ters, supra •.J..W 

Because the necessary components of standing are not 

plainly and clearly discernible from plaintiffs' allegations, the 

States' Complaint should be dismissed. 

12/ One cannot possibly determine from this single vague refer­
ence whether the states are direct or indirect purchasers of 
CLOZARIL· therapy. In addition, the states' indefinite reference 
to the possibility of states competing with Caremark also fails to 
identify a single entity in any state that stands ready and able 
to compete with Caremark in any market. (~Response at 10, cit­
ing complaint, 45) 

lRJ The states' reliance on Crimpers Promotions Inc. v. Home Box 
Office. Inc., 724 F.2d 290 (2d Cir. 1983), also is misplaced 
because the plaintiff's status as a direct purchaser was not at 
issue. 
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C.	 Complaints on Behalf of Unnamed state 
Agencies Must Be Dismissed 

In New York v. Cedar Park Concrete Corp., 665 F. Supp. 

238, 242 (S.D.N.Y. 1987), this Court dismissed the state Attorney 

General's antitrust complaint "(iln view of the need early in the 

litigation to identify state-affiliated purchasers" (emphasis 

added).l1/ Despite this holding, the states have not identified a 

single state agency in their complaint that has purchased 

CLOZARIL~ therapy or anything else for that matter from Caremark. 

(See Response at 9; complaint! 38) 

Moreover, the States' Response fails to distinguish New 

York v. Cedar Park concrete Corp., and only muddies the waters by 

arguing that certain attorneys general have the "authority to sue" 

on behalf of state agencies without their prior authorization. 

However, the issue raised by Caremark is not the general authority 

of an attorney general to bring suit on behalf of state agencies, 

but the right of an attorney general in this case to represent 

unidentified state agencies which either (i) did not purchase or 

(ii) did not directly purchase CLOZARIL* therapy. The decisions 

cited by the states merely provide that, based on specific con­

stitutional and statutory provisions in their respective states, 

certain attorneys general may bring actions on behalf of their 

respective state agencies without specific authorization. See, 

~, Florida ex rel. Shevin v. Exxon Corp., 526 F.2d 266 (5th 

cir.), cert. denied, 429 U.S. 829 (1976); QhiQ v. United Transp., 

11/ Cf. studefin v. New York City Taxi & Limousine COmm'n, 516 
N.Y.S.2d 1012 (Sup. ct. 1987) (recognizing due process right of 
civil defendant to know the identity of accuser). 
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Inc., 506 F. SUppa 1278 (S.D. Ohio 1981). These cases are irrele­

vant and fail to address the standing issue. Because the states' 

Complaint fails to allege whether unidentified state agencies are 

direct purchasers of CLOZARIL~, the states lack standing to pursue 

their purported claims. 

CONCLUSION 

For all these reasons, and those set forth in its open­

ing memorandum, Caremark respectfully moves this Court for an 

order dismissing all actions brought against it and for such other 

relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

Dated this 5th day of April, 1991. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Pasquale A. Razzano (PR 7340)
 
Theodore F. ShielIs (TS 8592)
 
CURTIS, MORRIS & SAFFORD, P.C.
 
530 Fifth Avenue
 
New York, New York 10036
 
(212) 840-3333 

Michael Sennett 
Michael A. Forti 
Michael J. Abernathy 
BELL, BOYD & LLOYD 
Three First National Plaza 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 372-1121 

Attorneys for Defendant 
CAREMARl( INC. 
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STATE 

Alabama 

Arizona 

California 

Colorado 

Connecticut 

Delaware 

District of 
Columbia 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIONS 

NAME OF CASE 

state of Alabama
 
James H. Evans
 
Attorney General v.
 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals
 
Corporation and
 
Caremark Incorporated
 

State of Arizona
 
Grant Woods,
 
Attorney General v.
 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals
 

_Corporation, and 
Caremark Incorporated 

state of California 
John K. Van de Kamp, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation, and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Colorado 
Duane Woodard, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Connecticut 
Clarine Nardi Riddle, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Delaware 
Charles M. oberly, III 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

District of Columbia 
John Payton, Acting 
corporation Counsel v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

DOCKET NUMBER 

91 CIV 1813 

91 CIV 0921 

90 CIV 8060 

90 CIV 8079 

90 CIV 8062 

91 CIV 1219 

91 CIV 1220 



STATE 

Florida 

Idaho 

Iowa 

Kansas 

Maine 

Maryland 

Massachusetts 

NAME OF CASE DOCKET NUMBER 

State of Florida 90 CIV 8063 
Robert A. Butterworth, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Idaho 91 CIV 1043 
Larry Echohawk, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Iowa 90 CIV 8064 
Thomas Miller, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Kansas 91 CIV 1165 
Robert T. Stephan, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Maine 90 CIV 8065 
James E. Tierney, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Maryland 90 CIV 8067 
J. Joseph Curran, Jr., 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 90 CIV 8069 
James M. Shannon, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 
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STATE NAME OF CASE DOCKET NUMBER
 

Minnesota 

Missouri 

New Hampshire 

New Jersey 

New York 

North Carolina 

ohio 

State of Minnesota 
Hubert H. Humphrey, III, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Missouri 
William L. Webster, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of New Hampshire 
John P. Arnold, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of New Jersey 
Robert J. Del Tufo, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 

_Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of New York 
Robert Abrams, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of North Carolina
 
Lacy H. Thornburg,
 
Attorney General v.
 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals
 
Corporation and
 
Caremark Incorporated
 

State of Ohio 
Anthony J. Celebrezze, Jr. 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

90 CIV 8055 

91 CIV 1392 

90 CIV 8071 

90 CIV 8073 

90 CIV 8074 

90 CIV 8092 

90 CIV 8075 

3
 



STATE 

Oklahoma 

Oregon 

Pennsylvania 

South Carolina 

South Dakota 

Tennessee 

Texas 

NAME OF CASE DOCKET NUMBER 

State of Oklahoma 91 CIV 1673 
Robert H. Henry 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Oregon 90 CIV 8076 
Dave Frohnmayer, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 90 CIV 8077 
Ernest D. Preate, Jr., 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of South Carolina 91 CIV 1814 
T. Travis Medlock 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of South Dakota 91 CIV 0244 
Mark Barnett, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
caremark Incorporated 

State of Tennessee 90 CIV 8080 
Charles W. Burson, 
Attorney General & Reporter v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Texas 90 CIV 8081 
Jim Mattox, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 
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STATE 

Utah 

Virginia 

Washington 

West Virginia 

Wisconsin 

NAME OF CASE 

State of Utah 
Paul Van Dam, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

Commonwealth of Virginia 
Mary Sue Terry, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Washington 
Kenneth o. Eikenberry, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of West Virginia 
Roger W. Tompkins, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
Corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

State of Wisconsin 
Don Hanaway, 
Attorney General v. 
Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corporation and 
Caremark Incorporated 

DOCKET NUMBER 

90 CIV 8082 

90 CIV 8084
 

90 CIV 8086 

90 CIV 8087 

90 CIV 8089 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
 

EASTERN DIVISION
 

IN RE: CLQZAPINE ANTITRUST ) MOL Docket No. 874 
LITIGATION ) 

) 
)
)
)
) 
) 

No. 90 C 6412 

Consolidated for Pretrial 
proceedings with the Following 
Actions That Have Been Trans­

)
) 

fGrred from the Southern 
District of New York: 

This Document Relates To ) 
Docket Numbers 90 Civ. 8055, ) 
8060, 8062-8065, 8067, 8069, ) 
8071, 8073-8077, 8079-8082, ) 
8084, 8086-8087, 8089, 8092; ) 
91 eiv. 0244, 0921, 1043, ) 
1165, 1219-1220, 1392, 1673, ) 
1813-1814 ) 

90 civ. 7724, 8055, 8060,
 
8062-8065, 8067, 8069, 8071, 
8073-8077, 8079-8082, 8084, 
8086-8087, 8099, 8092; 
91 eiv. 0244, 0921, 1043, 
1165, 1219-1220, 1392, 1613. 
1813-1814 

)
) 
)
 Honorable Harry D. ~inenweber 

DEFENDANT CARBHARX INC.'S
 
SUP'PLBHE1fltAL KBHORJUmUM OP LAW
 

IN SQPfOBT Qr IT8 KOTION TO PISMISS
 

Defendant Caremark Inc. ("Caremark tt ) respectfully sub­

mits this 5upplemental memorandum of law in support of its motion 

to dismiss the complaints ot the Statesll in these consolidated 

proceedings for their failure to state a claim upon which relief 

oan be granted. This motion was fUlly briefed before the U.S. 

District court for the Southern District of New York at the time 

these actions were transferred to this Court for consolidation 

1/ The thirty-three states, commonwealths and the District of 
Columbia which have filed actions against Sandoz Pharmaceuticals 
corp. (tiSandoz") and Caremark are collectively referred to herein 
a. nth. states." 



under MDL Docket No. 874. This memorandum supplements Caremark's 

two memoranda previously filed in the U.S. District Court for the 

southern District of New York on January 28, 1991, and April 5, 

1991, with rQlevant case authority decided by this Court and the 

U.S. court of Appeals for the seventh Circuit. 

PRELIMINARY STATEMEN~ 

The states attempt in their First and Second Claims for 

Relief to implicate Carernark in tying and price fixing conspira­

cies in violation of section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, 

based upon Caremarkts participation in Sandoz' CLOZARILs Patient 

HanaqemCiint System·rn ("CPMS") •V Because a plain reading of the 

states' allegations is that Caremark is merely Sandoz' agent, the 

States' complaints fail to aver a cognizable antitrust conspiracy 

between Sandoz and caremark. Recognizing this defect, the states 

attempt to salvage at least their tying claim by suggesting an 

illegal agreement among Sandoz and CLOZARIL· patients. The 

states' ~ost recent theory, however, is as flawed as the original; 

purported victims of an alleged restraint Of trade cannot satisfy 

the concerted action requirement at a section 1 claim. The 

States' Third clai~ for Relief, which purports to allege a Section 

2 monopolization claim, also should be dismissed as to Caremark 

because this claim is against sandoz alone. For these reasons, 

11 For a more thorough discussion of the factual background of 
this litigation, Caremark refer$ the Court to its Memorandum of 
Pointe and Authorities Supporting Ite Motion to Oismiss the 
states' Actions ("opening Mem.") filed on January 28, 1991, in the 
united states District Court for the Southern District of New York 
and its Preli.inary Report filed with this court on April 30, 
1991. 
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and for the reasonS discussed in the memoranda previously filed by 

Caremark, this court should dismiss the States' complaints. lI 

ARGUMENT 

I 

THE STATES FAIL TO PLEAD THE 
THRESHOLD REQUIREMENTS FOR A CLAIM 
yNDER SE£TION 1 QF THE SHERMAN ACT 

The states allege that Sandoz and Caremark have 

"illegally tied the sale of the drug clozapine (tying product) to 

blood drawing, case administration, data base, dispensing, and 

laboratory services (tied products)" and have "engaged in a ver­

tical price fixing agreement relating to the sale of the drug 

Clozaril, blood drawing, case administration, data base, dispens­

ing, and laboratory services in violation of Section 1 of the 

Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1." (Compl.!! 54 and 60)!/ Caremark's 

argument for dismissal developed fully in its prior memoranda is 

straightforward: (1) section 1 of the Sherman Act proscribes only 

JJ The states are incorrect in their assertion that the Federal 
Rules of civil Procedure merely require "that the complaint give
the defendant 'fair notice of what the plaintiff's claim is •.. 
• '" (States' Response to Caremark's Motion to Dismiss ("states' 
Response") at 3) This Court has held that "rAJ complaint must 
contain direct or inferential allegations of every material 
element necessary to state a leqal theory of relief." Deyilbi~ 
v. Arvid c. walbtrq , Co., No. 83 C 1133, slip OPt at 3 (H.O. Ill. 
1986) (Leinenweber, J.) (citing Car Carriers. Inc. v. lord Motor 
~, 745 F.2d 1101, 1106 (7th eire 1984), c~rt~ denied, 470 U.S. 
1054 (1985», attached hereto as Exhibit 1. Moreover, on a motion 
to dismiss, a court is not bound by the leqal characterizations 
that a plaintiff attributes to the facts. Republic st§~l corp. v. 
fopDsylyania Engine,ring Corp., 785 P.2d 174, 182-83 (7th Cir. 
1986). 

!I All citations are to the complaint tiled by the State of 
Hinnosota. 
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those restraints of trade achieved through concerted conduct: (2) 

under the Sherman Act, an agent is incapable of engaging in 

illegal concerted action with its principal; (3) the States' alle­

gations establish that Caremark is an agent of Sandoz with respect 

to the sale and distribution of CLOZARIL~; and therefore, (4) 

caremarx's participation in CPMS cannot as a matter of law violate 

Section 1 of the Sherman Act. (~ Carernark's Opening Mem. at 15­

18i Caremark's RQply Memorandum In Support of Its Motion to 

Dismiss ('IReply Mem. II) at 2-9) 

The States alternative theory -- that CLOZARIL~ patients 

are parties to a purportedly unlawful agree~ent -- also fails 

because the victim of an allQgQd rQ~traint of trade cannot be a 

co-conspirator to such a restraint. Moreover, the tying olaim 

falls for the independ~nt reason that th~ States do not allege 

that there is a substantial danger that eithQr Caremark or Sandoz 

will attain market power in the "tied" services, a necessary alle­

9ation according to the well-established precedent of this 

Circuit. Finally, th~ states' price fixing claim fails for the 

additional reason that the States do not allege that Caremark 

agreed to adhere to Sando2' suggested pric~ or that Sandoz sought 

.uch an agreement. 

A.	 The states' Allegations Establish That Caremark Is 
Sandoz' Aqent and Incapable of Conspiring with Sando2 
!jthin the Meaning of the aherman Act 

The states' complaints tail under Seotion 1 of the 

Sherman Act because Caremark, as Sandoz I Agent, is incapable of 

engaginq in an antitrust conspiracy. ~ MorrisQU v. Kurra~ 
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~scuit co., 797 F.2d 1430, 1436-38 (7th Cir. 1986): Illinois 

Corporate Travel. Ioc. v. American Airlines. Inc" No. 85 C 07079, 

elip op. at 5 (N.D. IlL), aff'd, 806 F.2d 722 (7th Cir. 1986) I 

attached hereto as Exhibit 2. ("[RJestraints imposed on indi­

viduals Who do not possess entrepreneurial indicia [~, agents) 

are outside the scope of Section 1."). Because the states rail to 

plead concerted action, their Section 1 claims must be dismissed. 

(~ ~ opening Hem, at 16-18; Reply Mem. at 7-9) 

Although the States argue that "Sandoz and caremark are 

two separate entities that unreasonably restrained trade" (states' 

Response at 20), their conduct is "concerted" within the meaning 

of Section 1 only if their relationship is one of independence, 

rather than agency. Thus, to claim that Caremark engaged in ille­

gal concerted action under Section 1 of the Sherman Act, the 

States must allege facts which establish that Caremark is truly 

independent from Sandoz and entrepreneurial with respect to the 

distribution ot CLOZARIL~. ~ Illinois Corporate Trayel, Inc. v. 

American Airlines. IncA, supra, No. 85 C 07079, slip OPt at 5 

("(W)hi18 (8 firm may] operat(e] as an independent business entity 

generally, it [may] not possess SUfficient independence with 

respeot to the sale[s] [at issue] to qualify as a reseller under 

antitrust analysis."). 

In 1111001. C9rpo~ate Tra~el. Inc. v. American Airlines, 

~, 806 F.2d 722 (7th Cir. 1986), the Seventh circuit affirmed 

the order of the district court denying a preliminary injunction 

and held that this requisite independence did not exist between a 

travel agency company and an airline. The Court held that with 
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respect to the sale of airline tickets for major airlines, the 

tr~vel agQncy was not an independent actor but merely an t1agenttl 

~hose prices could lawfully be fixed by the airlin~s. 12. at 725. 

The Court reasoned that the Il r elation [between the plaintiff and 

the airline) is a genuine agency (because) [t)ravel service opera­

tors do not resell air travel." ~. 

Here, as in Illinois Corporate Travel, an agency rela­

tionship ~xists between Sandoz and Caremark. The necessary 

independence found lacking in Illinois Corporate Travel would 

exist petween Sandoz and Caremark only if Caremark were a reseller 

of CLOZARIL~. The states' pleadings, however, clearly establish 

that careroark is not a reseller of CLOZARIL*. The states acknowl­

edge that Caremark merely "receives a fee from Sandoz for its 

services under CPMS.II (Compl.! 41) It is Sandoz and not 

Caremark who retains the purchase price and the attendant profits 

of CPMS. (Camp!., 40) Because the states admit that Sandoz 

reimburses Caremark for it CPMS services and that Caremark does 

not retain the purchase price for the sale of CLOZARIL· therapy, 

Care~ark is not a resell.r.~ Consequently, as in Illinois 

~9rporat9 Trav.l, Sandoz and Caremark are not economically inde­

pendent actor5 capable of engaging in concerted action that vio­

late5 Section 1 of the Sherman Act. Because the states plead an 

~ As Caremark argued in its opening and reply memoranda, reten­
tion ot receipts and profits is a clear indicia of agency. ~ 
Ally Gargano/MCA AdY~tti8iDg, Ltd. v. ~Qoke Properties, 1989-2 
Trade Cae. (CCH) ! 68,817,62,277 (S.D.N.Y.) ("In view of the 
retention of profits provision it is difficult to characterize 
MeA's role with respect ~o subleasing as remotely that of 
-entrepreneur' or 'independent businessman. I") (~Caremark's 

Reply Mem. at 9) 
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agency relationship that ~s immune from antitrust liability under 

section 1 of the Sherman Act, this Court should dismiss the 

states' First and Second Claims for Relief.§! 

B.	 patient Participation In CPMS Does Not Constitute an 
"Agreement" Under SegtiQD ODe of the Sherman Act 

Recognizinq their pleading infirmities, the states 

retreat from their reliance on Caremark as a "co-conspirator. II 

(See Caremarx's Reply Mem. at 2, citing the States' Response at 

18-19) Instead, the states concoct an alternative theory of 

antitrust conspiracy claiming that CLOZARIL* patients themselves 

and Sandoz form the requisite contract, combination or conspiracy. 

The States now assert that the concerted action "requirement is 

met ~hen a patient (or payor) agreed [sic] to the purchase of 

CPMS." (states' Response at 19) As Caremark urged in its reply 

memorandum, this theory is not tenable in la~ or in logic. The 

action of a single entity imposing a tying arrangement on its 

customer& is not proscribed by SEction 1 of the Sherman Act. 

~cKenzie v. Mercy Hospital of Ingependence, 854 F.2d 365, 368 

(lOth cir. 1989). (~Caremark's Reply Mem. at 4) That -the 

buyer took both products in a package against his ~ill negates the 

existence of a 'contract, combination, or conspiracy.'" ~ v. 

jJ As Caremark argued in its reply memorandum, dismissal under 
Federal Rule or civil Procedure 12{b)(6) is proper because the 
States' pleadinqs establish that Caremark is Sandoz' agent. 
(Caremark's Reply Mem. at 9, citing North American ProdYc§ v. ~ 
Penachio COL' 705 F. Supp. 746, 750 (E.D.N.Y. 1988) (Dismissal ot 
section 1 claim undet Federal Rule Qt Civil Procedyre 12(b)(6) was 
proper because "from plaintiff's own all~gAtiQnl th[e] [cJourt 
conclude(d) that for antitrust purposes, plaintiff was defendant's 
aqent.") (emphasis added). 
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Comprehensive Accounting CQ~, 776 F.2d 665, 669 (7th Cir. 1985), 

~. denied, 475 U.S. 1129 (1986).1/ See generally United states 

v. Hasser, 476 F.2d 1111, 1118-20 (7th Cir. 1973) (alleged victim 

cannot be co-conspirator unless victim is subject to liability 

under the statute at issue). Because the states have failed to 

allege concerted action between parties capable of an antitrust 

conspiracy, this Court should dismiss their claims under section 

1. 

C.	 The Pro5cription on Vertical Price Restraints Does Not 
AEPly to the Sandoz-Caremark Rel~tionship 

The states' recognition that Caremark is Sandoz' agent 

similarly defeats their Section 1 price fixing claim. The prohi­

bition on vertical price agreements does not apply to restrictions 

on the price to be charged by one who is in reality an agent of, 

not a buyer from, the manufacturer. MorrisoD v. Murray Biscuit§, 

§upra, 797 F.2d at 1426 (citing united States v. General Electri~ 

~, 272 U.S. 476 (1926». Accordingly, as Sandoz' agent in the 

distribution of CLOZARIL*, Caremark is legally incapable of 

oonspiring to maintain resale prices. (~~ Caremark's 

Opening Mea. at 20-22 and Reply Mem. at 6-9) 

11 To the extent that the Seventh Circuit's decision in ~ v. 
CQmcrehensiye A~couDting Corp., supra, cites Perma Life Mufflers. 
~ v. International Parts Corp., 392 U.S. 134 (1968), overruled 
in part, ~pperweld C9tP. v. Independenc§ IYbe Corp., 467 U.S. 752 
(1984), for the principle that "unwilling compliance" satisties 
the joint actions requirement ot Section 1, that holdin9 has been 
effectively overruled by Elsher v. ~1ty ot BerkeliY, 475 U.S. 260, 
267 (1986) ("(A] restraint imposed unilaterally ••• does not 
become concerted action within the meaning ot [Section 1 ot the 
Sherman Act] simply because it has a coercive effect upon the 
parties who must ob.y."). 
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o.	 The States Have Failed to Allege That a Substantial 
Danger Exists That Eithar Sandoz or Caremark will 
~cquire Market Power in the Allegeo._Tied Service Markets 

As Caremark argued in its other memoranda, to state a 

claim for tying, the States must allege that the tie forecloses a 

substantial volume of commerce in the market for the tied product. 

(~ Caremark's Opaninq Mem. at 18-20; Caremark's Reply Hem. at 6 

n.5) The C3sa authority established by this Circuit, however, 

places an even greater burden on plaintiffs alleging an unlawful 

tying arrangement: "One of the threshold criteria the plaintiff 

. . . is that there is a substantial danqar that themust satisfy 

tying seller will acquire market power in the tied product 

martn." liU.l v. Qomprehensive Accounting Co., supra, 776 F.2d at 

674 (emphasis added) (quoting Carl S~ndpurg Villaqe Condominium 

Ass'n No.1 v. Fitst condominium Dev~lQpment COL' 758 F.2d 203, 

210 (7th Cir. 1985}). Accordingly, the states must allege facts 

which establish a substantial danger that either Sandoz or 

caremark will acquirg market power in the alleged tied services. 

The states merely conclude that "{t)he Clozaril/cPHS tie 

toreclo.es competition in the markets for blood drawing, case 

administration, data base, dispensing, or laboratory services." 

(Compl. ! 46) The states fail to allege that either Sandoz or 

Caremark currently has or will acquire market power in any of 

those servioes. Because the States fail to meet this threshold 

pleading requirement, this court should dismiss their tying 

claims. 
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E.	 The states Fail to Plead Facts to Support Their 
vertical Price fixing Claim 

The seventh Circuit adheres, as it must, to the Supre~e 

court doctrine that a manufacturer may suggest a resale price and 

that a distributor may freely conform to such price. ~,~, 

Jack Walters & Sons Corp. v. Morton Building, Inc., 737 F.2d 698 

(7th cir. ), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 1018 (1984); Skokie Gold 

~tandard LiguQr v. Joseph E. Seagram & Son§, 661 F. Supp. 1311 

(N.D. Ill. 1986). Thus, to state a claim for resale pricQ mainte­

nance under section 1 of the Sherman Act, the States must allege 

something more than Sandoz' suggestion of a "resale" price and 

Caremarkls adhQrence to such a price. The states must allege 

facts which would exclude the possibility that Sandoz and Caremark 

were acting independently. IS· at 1318; Magid ~nyf~cturing Co, 

v. U.S.D. corp~, 654 F. Supp. 325, 328 (N.D. Ill. 1987). The 

States mQrely conclude that "Sandoz sets the resale price. II 

(states. Response at 25) The states' complaints allege no facts 

which would establish that Caremark communicated its acquiescence 

or agreement to a resale price, and that such agreement was sought 

by SandOz. Accordingly, the states' price fixing allegations 

should be dismissed. BI (~Reply Mem. at 9-10) 

1/ Dismissal of the resale price fixin9 claim is proper under 
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6). ~ Char Crews. Inc. v. 
Christotle Silver. Inc., No. 81 C 3940, slip Opt at 2 (N.D. Ill. 
1982), attached hereto as Exhibit 3. ("General allegations that 
defendants conspired together . • . are not sufficient to state a 
oause of action [for resale price maintenance.) ••• [G)eneral 
allegations of conspiracy are merely legal conclusions, and ~ 
~f supported with allt90tions ot some specific facts tending to 
show the existence of the alleged conspiracy.") (emphasis added). 
~ ~ ~~ymAn ExplQration Corp. v. Unit~g Gas fi~e Line Corp.,
813 F. 2d 1357, 1360 (lOth Clr. 1989) ("To adequately state a 
vertical price fixin9 violation ('resale price maintenance'), 
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CQN.CLUS ION 

for these reasons, and for all the reasons set forth in 

its opening and reply memoranda, Carernark respectfully moves this 

Court for an order dismissing the States' complaints, and each of 

them, for failure to state a claim upon which relief can be 

granted. 

Dated this 3rd day of June, 1991. 

Michael 
Michael 
Michael J. Abernathy 
BELL, BOYD & LLOYD 
Three First National Plaza 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 372-1121 

Attorneys for Defendant 
CAREMARK INC. 
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II 

THE STATES HAVE HOT PLEADED A 
~ONQPOLIZATION CLAIM AGAINST CAREMARK 

The states' monopolization claim is against Sandoz and 

Sandoz alone: 

~andoz'$ monopQlizatiQD consists of (1) lever­
aging its monopoly power over clozapine to 
gain competitive advantage in the markets for 
blood drawing, case administration, data base, 
dispensing, and laboratory sarvices, and (2) 
extending and maintaining its monopoly power 
over clozapine beyond its current five year 
exclusive marketing period. 

(compl. , 67; emphasis added) The states have failed to name 

Carem~rk as a monopolist and have not alleged that Caremark 

engaged in any monopolistic conduct. V Because it lIalleges no 

specific act or conduct on the part of" Caremark, the states' 

Third Claim for Relief should be dismissed as to Caremark. ~ 

Potter v. Clark, 497 F.2d 1206, 1207 (7th Cir. 1974). 

~aint1ft must allege at l~~st some facts which would support an 
inference that the parties have agreed that one will set the price 
at Which the other will ~esell the product or service to third 
parties."} (Qmphasls added in part). 

21 Confronted with this obvious deficiency, the states advance 
an entirely new claim against Caremark. For the first time in 
their Response, they contend that "Caremark has conspired with 
Sandoz to monopolize the market for clozaplne." (states' Response 
at 25) This covert attempt by the States to amend their 
complaints must fail. This Court has held that "(iJf a complaint
is insufficient it may not be amended by briefs in opposition to 
the motion to dis~iss." Devilbiss v. Arvid c. Walberg' Co., 
suprA, No. 83 C 1133, slip Opt at 3; ~ AlI2 Car CarrieraJ Inc. 
v. Ford Motor COL, supr~, 7~5 F.2d at 1107 (f1[I)t is axiomatic 
that the complaint may not be amended by the briefs in opposition 
to a motion to dismiss."). 
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THE DEVILBISS COMPANY, a D1vlsion of Champion Spark Plug 
company, a Delaware Corporation, Plalnt1ff, v. ARVID C. 

WALBERG &CO., an 111in015 Corporation, Cefendant 

NO. 83 C 1LB 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT fOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
 
ILLINOIS EAST£RN DIVISION
 

SllP Opinion 

february 27. 1986 

OPINIONBY: L£INENWEBER 

OPINLON; MEMORANDUM OF OPINION AND OROER 

HARRY D. LEINENWEBER, Juog~ 

counter/plalnt1 ff f Afvld C. walberg & Cc. ("Walberg") t filed an amended 
counterclal. Count I seekIng 5eoOO for engineering time It was forced to expend 
as a result of the 1nfer1or construct1on of two spray booths lt had purChasea
from counterldefendan t, The DeV llb1iS Company ("0eVllbi 55") t for a CU5 tomer 
under 1ts purchase order No. 0" 2'. 

DeVl101ss has ~oved for summary JUdgment supported Dy the depOSition of Arvld 
C. Walberg, a principal of Walberg, taken on December 14, '983, and a series of 
letters Detwren the part1es td~ntlf1ed 1n the deposlt1on. 

Thts sal! lHue was prevlous,ly befarl~ the court on a llIotton for summary 
jUdgMent ~hlch was denlea on August 30, 1963, The caS1S of that rullng wa~ the 
existence at that time of a quest10n of fact Whether th! part1es had intended an 
agreelent to split custOMer's biC~ Charges of '7319.30 to encompass tne '8000 
Walberg snks. 

Exhlblts A, B an~ C Indicate that during the sprtng of 1982 walberg ana 
DeVllbls~ hac a dispute over Dack Charges being made agatnst Walberg by lt~ 

custoler. At tnat time, Walberg was claIming 17319,30 rel~bur5ement ~hl1e 
DeVilbiss Mas offer1ng &15aO.2~. 

Apparently. through negottatlans aver the telephone tn August, 1983. the 
parties agreed tllat ttlE!Y would "equally snare the responSlbl1ity 1n the matter" 
and accept thE sum of $3659.6~ each. (Ex. D corre5pOlldence between DeVilbiSs ana 
Walberg. aated 9/7/82) DeVl101ss' share was passed on to Walberg in the for. of 
a credit to Its account Nlth DeV11b1ss, leav1ng a balance due of "4,3'6.35. TO 
re.ove any doubt that ~alberg understood th15 t 1t ~rote DeVilbiSS on S!ptelber 
17, 1981 lEx. EJ aCk.nowleag1ng DevllbU,s' letter of September '. 1982 ana 
InOlcatlng payment of the account was delayed because Walberg nwas a little 
~hort of cash. u The balance ~iS not d1sputed. 

walberg proceeaed to lake a Npayment en account- of 11000 on Dece.ber 9, 
1982. (Ex. Fl 

On January 19, 1983, DeVilbiSS sent Walberg a ounntng letter clearly

referr1ng to Walberg'S purchase order No. O~127 anO an ·unpaid balance an
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(thIS) account 1n the amO\Jnt of $13,316.35. w (Ex. G) walberg responded on 
January 16,1983 apologetically adv1sIng that 1t had ~Ilot been able to ra1se 
fundS as yet to clear up our 010 obllgaUons." (Ex. HI 

DeVllblss contenas, lnter al1a, on the oasts of the foregoing, an account 
stated was createo bet~een the partIes ~h1ch forecloses Walberg'S clatm of $8000 
cre~lt on thIS same account. 

walberg contends first, tnat the court oreer of September 30, t983 was f1nal 
and appealable because of an oreer, dateCl September 14, 1983, f1ncu"g the 
jUdgment In favor of DeV1lbiss of '13,316.25 fInal and appealaOle; second, that 
DeVllblSS' ralsing of account stated 1S not ttmely; and thIrd, 1n any event, it 
1s a question of fact. More 1mportantly, Walberg has not dIsputed any of the 
depositIon references or exhibits and has supplied no additional references or 
eXhib1ti. 

In Counts III and IY Of the counterclaim, walberg alleges that DeVllb1ss and 
Champion 5par~ Plug commenced a dlrect attack against walberg to dr1ve It 1nto 
bankruptcy and out of bus1ness. Allegedly, the attack was executed through the 
following acts: (,t I manufactur1ng substandard exhaust plenum challbers for use by
walberg as a component part of a process bearing Walberg'S nallle; (2) publication 
tnrough its agent' of slander; (3) breach of an agreement to test a ~alberg 
product; and (4) sale of competing products to mutual dlstr10utors and customers 
at unfa1rly low prices. Count III alleges that these acts const1tute "unfaIr 
trade and unfatr compet1tl0n" and cause irreparable damage. Count IV alleges 
these acts were 1n restra1nt of trade ana t~ereby vlolated Sees. 1 and 2 of the 
Sher~an Act, 15 U.S.C. 51 anCl 2, and Sees. 4, 7 anCl 16 of the Clayton Act, 15 
U.s.C. i1S, '8 and 26A. DeVilbiss has loved to d1smiSS on the ground that Counts 
III and IV fail to state any cla1m upon wh1ch reltef could oe granted. 

DISCUSSION 

I. PLAINTifF'S MorlON fOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON COUNT I OF THE COUNTERCLAIM 

The order of September 14, 1983 render~d only the judgment 1n favor of 
OeV11Dlss for $13,316 final. The balance of the case under Rule 54(0), 
Fed.R.Civ.P., 1ncluding Willberg's counterclaim, (wh1ch was Subsequently
amended), 1$ not final and 1s SUbJect to revls10n at any t1mE prior to fInal 
adjuC11cat1on. 

DeVllbls~1 mot10n for su~mary Juog~ent was 1n response to platnt1ff l s amended 
counterclal1 an~ DeVIlbiss Is within its rIghts to raise any dEfens~ It might
have it th~ time the pleadlng t5 fl1!d. Rule 56, Fed.R.elv.P. Even if Walberg
had not filed an amendea countercla1m, Nhere there 1s an expandeO record such as 
15 the case ~re, a party May renew Its ~ot1on for su~mary jUdg~ent. ~irby v. P. 
R. t1allory & Co., Inc., 489 f.ld 904,913 (7th Cir. 1973). 

Listly, walberg claims that account stated 1s a question of fact. However, 
the ex1stence of an account stated 1s a question of fact lIke any other factual 
issue. Under so~e clrcu~stances lts existence or absence can be one of law. 

An -account stateo" 1s an agreement bet~een p~rtles to pr~vlous transactions 
that thE account representlng the balance ~ue 15 correct, w1th a prOM1se,
 
express or i.pIle", that the debtor shall pay the full amount of the agreed

balance. LaGrange M~tal PrOducts v. Pett1bone Mul11ken, 106 Ill.App.Jd 1046, 
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651, 62 Ill. Dec. 619, 625 (1St D1St. 19821. Here, Walberg 
acknowledged 1n wrlt1ng on tNO occastons that D~VilbISS' claim of balance due an 
.ts purchase onJer N.c. 04127 was correct. (Exs. E & HI In addition, he made 
·payment on account" of S1000 on December 9, 1982. (Ex. f) 

SInce all of \oJalb~rg' s engineering worle. was done on accour'lt No. 04127 ano was 
completed prior to January t8, 1982 (Ex. C, p.', enumerated P11), walberg
Obviously had knowleOge of 1ts potent1al clalm at the t1~e It wrote EXhlb1ts E & 
H anCl made the payment. (Ex. F) Therefore, there are no 1Bues Of fact over the 
ex1stence of th~ account stated. 

Walberg has not sought to dispute any of the foreg01ng, be1ng content to rest 
on its legal arguments. 

Accordingly, DeVilbiSS' _otion for sum~ary Judgment on Count I of the 
countercla1m 15 granted. 

II. PLAINTIFF'S HoTION TO DISMISS COUNTS 111 and IV OF THE COUNTERCLAIM 

For the reason~ stated here1n, DfVtlO1SS' Illotton to dismiss is granted. A 
complaint w111 not oe dlsm1ssed for fallure to state a claim unles$ 1t appears 
that the plaintiff could not prove any s~t of facts which would entitle h1. to 
rillef. Brillhart v. Mutual Pfed1cal Ins., Inc., 768 F.2d 196,199 (7th e1r. 
'98!>1; Zapp v. United Transportation Un10n, 727 F.2d 617,627 (7th elr. 1984). A 
co~plalnt must contain direct or inferential allegat10ns of eVEry ~aterlal 
element necessary to state a legal theory of reltef. C~rl SandburQ Village
Conc10. Assn. No. 1 v. f1rst Condo Develop. co., 758 F.Zd 203,207 (7th C1r. 
1985), Sutliff, Inc. v. Donovan Co., Inc., 727, f .2d 648, 655 C7th C1r. 1984). A 
court can grant a motIon to dismiss ~lf there 1~ no reasonable prospect that the 
pla1ntiff can make out a cause of action from the events narrated in the 
co~plitnt." Carl Sandburg v11laqe, 758 F.2d, at Z07; Brlllhart, 768 F.ld, at 
198. Defenc1ant 1s correct 1n asserting 1n hiS reply that if a cOlllplalnt 1s 
insufflcient it ~ay not b2 a.ended by br1efs in Oppositton to the motton to 
dismiss. Car Carr1ers, Inc. Y. Foro "otor Co., 745 F.2d 1101, 1107 (7th e1r. 
1984). Counts 111 and IV of the counterclaiM fail to state any claim upon which 
re11ef may oe granted. Count III falls to set forth, either dir~ctly or 
indirEctly. allegations necessary to state a cause of action for llunfa1r trad!" 
or "unfalr competlt1on". This court and the counter/defendant can only guess at 
the manner 1n which the actlvlti~s set forth 1n Count III constitute unfair 
trade or unfa1r compitltl0n. If Walberg 1s alleging that th!y constttute 
cOMmercial 01spar.ge~ent, it has falled to allege the approp r1ate ele~ents. See. 
e.g., SDlith-victor Corp. v. Sylvania Electric Products, Inc., 242 F. Supp. 302" 
J07 (N.D. Ill. 1965). 

If WalDerg 1s all!glng wrongful Interference w1th a prospective buslness
 
it1Vantage. it did not set fortn the necessary elements. See. e.g., Crlnkley v.
 
Dow Jones & Co., 67 Ill.App.3d 869, 878i M.E.2d 71' (1st D1st. 1979). To the
 
ext!nt that the facts set forth in Count III May g1ve rise to a cause of act10n
 
for defamation, as was noted by JUdge Grady 1n h1s HeMorandu~ Op1n10n of
 
september 3D, 1983 regardIng Count II, Count III only duplicates Count II. Se~,
 
e.g., Ch1cago He1ghts venture v. DynaMIte NODel of America, Inc., No. 84-3087,
 
slip op. at 15 17th Clr. 1/28/86).
 

Count IV also fails to state any claIm upon which r!llef could be granted.
 
Count IV 1S totally devo1d of allegations necessary for a v10lation of Sec. 1
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of the Sher~an Act, 15 U.S.C. 91. See, generally, Copperweld Corp. v. 
lIlClepE:nden~e TUbE' Corp., -U.S.-, 104 S.Ct. 2731 (1984)j Car Carriers, 745 f.2d 
1101. Count tv also laCks any alHgatlons of facts regarding a v101atlon of Sec. 
2 Of the Sher~an Act, 15 U.S.C. 52, such as a tnreatened actual ~onopoly, larket 
pQw~r, or relevant product or geographic ~arkets. See, generally, coppErw21o, 
104 S.Ct. 2731. Slm1larly, there are no allegat10ns of facts 5upportlng a 
vtolaUon of Sec. 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. Sla, such as those regarding 
the Illegal acquisition of a euslness enterprlse and a corresponding lessening 
of compet1tion. See, generally, Brunswlck Corp. v. Pueblo Bowl-O-Hat, Inc., 429 
U.S. 477 (1977). 

Accordingly, since thE counter/plaintiff nas not and apparently cauld not 
alleae the necessary legal or factual ele~ents of any legal theory for wh1ch 
th1s-court could grant rel1ef, Counts tIl and IV of the amended CDunterclatl are 
d1s,,'lissed. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 
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ILLINOIS CORPORATE TRAVEL, INC. albia "cTRAVEL TRAVEL
 
SERVICES, Plaintiff, v. AMERICAN AIRLINES, INC., Defendant
 

No. 85 C 07079 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT fOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF
 
ILLINOIS E~STERN DIVISION
 

Sl1p Opinion 

January 8, 1986 

OPINIONBY; 6ETZENDANNER 

OPINION: MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER 

SUSAN GETZENDANNER, District JUdge: 

ThiS antitrust case is before the court on the plaintiff's mot1on to 
recons1der and SEt aside the courtls September 16, 1985 ~emoranduM opinlon and 
order denying plaintiff's Matton for a preliminary Injunction. Although the case 
has now been reassigned to JUdge Brian DUff, I offered to rule on the motion In 
order to avoId tne necessity Of reconvenIng any evidenttary hearIngs, and judge
Duff agreed by order dated December 6, 1985. Pla1ntiff ra1ses t~o argu~ents: 1) 
that the court erred 1n balanc1ng the hardships to the parties; and 2 ) that the 
court 1mproperly applied common law agency prinC1ples to plaintiff's allegations 
of resale price ma intenanCE. 

1. Balance of Hard5hlps 

Plaintiff ra1ses two distinct argulents concernlng the calance of hardShips. 
F1rst is that the court erred 1n characterltlng plilntlff's estiMates of har~ as 
·conclusary.· Second is that the court unfa1rly relied on AMerican's clal~s of 
har/ll to Its dtstrlbut10n system when pla.1ntlff was precluded frol investigating 
ind expostng thi weaknesses of those cla1ms at the pr~11.1nary 1njunct1on 
hearing. Nelther argument seeNS to tht court persuasive grounds for 
recons i de rl tton. 

Plaintiff's ~vldence Df 1rr2parable harft consists al-ost entirely Of opinion
 
evidence fro. 1ts preSident Richard Dlckleson not that it will go out of
 
businESS, but that It will ~e prevented fro~ opening a number of add1t1onal
 
~cTravel offices through use of an ada1ttedly novel pr1cing and advertiSing
 
systrl. AS Dic~1eson set forth 1n h1S aff1davlt, McTravel Is Doth a -recent
 
Intrant into the travel agency business· and tne "first· travel agency to
 
proMot2 the discount travel concept. (Olckleson Aft. PP 26-27). While currEnt
 
losses due to delays 1n thts strategy are Clearly dIfficult to quantify, the
 
fact remains that what "cTravel seeks by an 1nJunctlon is not a pr~servatlon of
 
the status quo, undif Which American'S travel agenCies ar2 not allowed to
 
advertise rEbates, out a chinee to capltal1tE on a newly co~petittve market.
 
ThuS, whtle McTravel's injurieS are -1rreparable" In tne sense that they are
 
difficult tG quantIfy, the chIef 10SS!5 of whlch ~cTravel compla1ns 1nvolv!
 
benefits not pr~sently enjoyed.
 

Plaint1ff Vigorously argues that grant1ng an 1nJunction would prtserve rather 
than alter the statUi quo since HcTrivel, while not an authorized AmerIcan 
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agent, was nonetheless authorlted under tt~ ARC agree~ent to issue American 
tickets tly uSlllg tf1e iMprint plates of ottler earners ~lth whlcn AmErican has a 
bl1ateral ttc~etlng arrangement. The flaw in this argument 15 tnat at no time
 
unt!l just Defore thiS suit dl0 ~cTravel make national efforts to promote its
 
rebating policies. (A chief Exal'lple would bi the prollottonal spots on "Good 
Morning America.") While permitting McTravel to continue Issuing American 
tickets would In part preserve the status quo, permitting McTravel to issue such 
tlcKet~ while pursuing an aggressive marketing strategy would greatly alt~r the 
status quo. 

For similar r~asons, the court rejEcts plaintiff's contention that rel1ance 
011 Am~r1can'S harm was erroneous. In weighing the relative hardShips between 
American and "cTravel, the court was not opining that tl1e tnJunction would 
economlcally dlt11intsh AmErican'S business. Had the court done so, pla1ntiff
would be correct to complain that evtdentiary rUlings Impaired Its ability to 
refute American'S claims. l'Iy point, however, was that any leglti",ate Inte~st 

American had 1n maintaining its alstr1bution system ~ould be Irreparably lost 
were McTravel allowed to pursue its aggressive new strategIes. The court's use 
of the word ·harm" ~as apparently als1eacltng, but was based on I1cTravel's claims 
that its new ~arkEt1ng would revolutlonl1€ the travel agency business. Taking
those claims of success as correct, to grant the preltmlnary injunct10n WOUld, 
as a practical latter, moot the enttre controversy by requiring A~erlcan to 
change its tttstrtbutlon syste~ whether that systeM 1s lawful or not. The court 
therefore adhires to tts conclusions about the relative balance of hardships, 
absent a stronger showing of succe55 on the merltl. 

2. Probability of Success 

PlaintIff ~ikes two relatEd arguments in favor of reconsidering the court's 
aSSEss~ent on the ~erlts of the case: first that thE court erroneously found 
t1cTravel to De an uagent ll of Amentan under com_on-law prtnciples and second 
that co~mon-law agency analysls is 1n any event inappropriate for antitrust 
analysis. In support of the fIrst argument, plaintiff cites two cases, both 
presented to the court for the first ttle on this _otton, which hold that i 
travel agency 1S not an -agint- of the air11ne for bankruptcy related purposes. 
In In re Shullllan Transport EnterpriSes, Inc., 744 f.2d 293 (Zd elr. 1984), Pan 
A~erlcan Atr11nes atte~pted to assert a prior1ty over proceeas held by an 
international freight forwarder whlcn had filed for Chapter 11 protection. The 
court rejectrd the argUMent that the dEbtor held the proceedS of the a1r space 
sales in the fidUCiary capacity of an agent, and thus held that the debtor'S 
secured len~er had prtor1ty over the airline to the fundS. The court latd 
particular stres5 on the airline'S laCk Of control over the debtor'S collect1on 
of funds. Id. at 195. 

The othRr case, In re Morales Travel Agency, 667 F.2d 1069 (1st Cir. 1981), 
involved a slal1ar situatlon: Eastern Airlines attempted to claim l~medtate 
possession of fundS held by a bankrupt travel agent on the grouna that the fund! 
represented proceedS of its sales. Notwtthstanding language 1n the governing 
trade agree.ent that suCh proceedS were property of the airline to be held 1n 
trust, the court noted that the travel agent nowhere segregated the proceeds of 
alrl1ne sales frOM tts general Funds, and hEld the relationShip to be one of 
debtor-credltor rather tnan one of trust. Id. at 1071-72. 

Assuming that the facts 1n Shul.an and Morales are fully app11cable here, n1 
It still oaes not follow as a matter of law that Oefenaant'S ban on the 
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advertls10g of rebatfs is per se tllegal. Bath Shulman and Morales were 
concerned with the o~tenslble ownership problems created when a travel agent
commlngles funds collected far particular carrlers 1n its general accounts. 
Those cases tJ1eoretlcally have little appl1cat1on to the agency Inquiry und!:?r 
antitrust law, .hlCh 15 couched In terms of ~hether a given consignment ~asks an 
unlawful resale price ma1ntenanC! scheml!. !-la-re, the functIon of travel agents is 
to act as mere conGults through who~ American sells directly to customers, not 
resellgri, and the agency InqUiry holds. 

n1 The Airlines Reporting Corporation (ARC) agreement which governs 
A.er1can's relations with plaintiff provides at Section VII-B that leT shall 
deSignate a ban~ account for the beneflt of .RC and the carrl~r to hole the 
proceeos from sales of air transportation. the court has assumed that thiS 
language does not reqUire leT to des1gnate separate bank accounts for each 
carr ler. I f this aS5umpt 1on Is erroneous, ho~eyer t SI1ulaan and Morales !light be 
factually dlstingu1shabl~. 

Plalnt1ff sicondly argues that application of co~~on-law agency prin,lples 
was In any event l~proper. Plaintiff relies in Its brief Chiefly on Simpson v. 
Union 011 Co., 37? U.S. 13 (1964), In which the Supreme Court Rlade clear that 
tt)e forlllallt1es of consignment relationships. such as passage of title, may not 
be used to avoid antitrust liability for an otherwise unlawful re~al~ price 
Maintenance scheme. Pla1ntiff 1nte rprets S1mpson to require a finding that the 
agent lacks independence and 1s In effect little mare than an employee before a 
COlJrt can find an agent's lac~ of pricing authortty to be il lawful attr1tJute of 
a true conslgnBint relationShip. 

Plaintlff's lnte rpretat10n is borne out In many tases which stress an 
agent-plilntiff's lack of entrepreneurial independence as one basis for finding 
no resale prlce maintenance in a part1cular fIxed price conSlgnment. See t e.g., 
Holter v. Moore & Co., 702 F.2d 854 (10tn CU.), cert. dented, 464 U.S. 937 
(1983); Hardwick v. rw-Way 011 Co., Inc., 569 F.ld 806, 810 (5th C1r.), cert. 
deniEd, 444 U.S. 836 (1979); American 011 Co. v. McHull1n, 508 t .Zd 134S, l3S1 
(5th C1r. 1975); LaurenCE J. Gordon, Inc. v. Brandt, IncO) 5!>4 F.Supp. 1144, 
H50 (W.O. Wash. 19831. However, the above courts have also interpreted Sll\pson 
not to lnvalldate all fixed price constgnment relatlonsh1pS, but SiMply to 
requJri courts to examine the substance Of a purporteo conSignment relation in 
deterllnlng whether the cons1gn~ent is bona fide or not. This examination 
lnvolves many factors, particularly wh~ther the agent bears the risk5 of the 
d1striblltion process. See, e.g., Mes1row v. pepperldg2 Fara, Inc., 703 F.2d 339, 
343 (9th Clr.), cert. denied, 464 U.S. 820 ('983); Hardwick, 589 F.2d at 809; 
Pogue v. Internat10nal Industries, Inc., 524 F.2d 342, 345 (6th elf. 1975); 
Greene Y. General foods Corp., 517 F.2d 635, 653 (5th eir. 1975), (ert. denied, 
424 U.S. 942 (1976); Laurence J. GOrc2on, Inc., 554 r.supp. at 1150. Travel 
agents aSSUMe no r1sk of loss dUE to unsold air spacl. and the court relied 
chiefly on that l~ck of risk 1n finding a true cons1gn.£nt relatlonsnlp to 
eust. 

Even assumtng tnat fntrepreneur1al independence Is the true litmus test for 
vertical prlce restraints under SI~pson, plaintiff's status as an independent 
bUSiness entlty does not control the quest10n of Its agency status ~lth respect 
to the purchase and sale of .ler1can tickets. Just as i so-called agent ~ay act 
in that capac1 ty as to some .atters but not others, In re Shulllan Transport 
EnterpriseS, Inc .• 744 F. 2d 293, 295 (2d Clr. 1984), so Mayan otherwise 
lndependent buslness enttty be a mere agent with respect to certa1n 
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activitIes. Se~, e.g.} Hardwlc~, 589 F.2a at 809-810 (store own~r, although an 
indepenaent operator in many respects, held an agent loll th respect to sale. Of 
gasoline frolll pump outside 5torl'). 

Application of thiS prinClple to the present case produces m1~ed results. 
I'IcTravel, whlle clearly not an ~ernplcyee" of AmeriCan, does nat bear the 1nOicla 
of an entripreneur In selling defendant's t1ckets: plaintiff can only negotiate 
a sale after chec~ing with Amertcan that a flIght !eat 1s in fact available, 
does not assume the riSk of unsold seats, never purchases the ticKets for 
resale, ana is not a party to the contract for the sale of the flight, Which is 
executed as 1f between the airline and the customer, These factors strongly 
support the court1s earlier ~naly~l~. 

On the other hand, the custOler remits paY~Ent to the travel agency in the 
latter'S name, and the contract between Amer1can and Its agents does not sp~cify 
hOW funds should be callect~d. While this rls~ can be Nin1mIteO tnrough 
accepting only cash or approved credIt cards, the r1sk of nonpayment due to 
custc-er default nonetheless reaalns loIith McTravel, not American. Unlike the 
risKs lncurreQ by tIle plalnUff 1n Simpson, t'lOwever, thiS riSk does not attach 
until after the custam~r agree5 to purcnase an a1rline tlcket. The court 
therefore assumed tI1at American's interest 1n price regulation of alrl1ne 
tIckets would bt just1fted by the fact that the r1sk of unsold tic~ets rEmains 
With A~erlcan throughout the sales process, despite its use of outs1dE agents 
instead of e~ployee5 as salesp~oplF. n2 

n2 HcTravel has also argued that the court erred 1n finding no true 
compet~tlon betwein the airline and the agent. While Amerian collects less money 
en t1c~its sold by agents than tickets sold through American 5al~5people, it 
also lncurs less expenses on those sales. Even aSSUMing, ho~everl that A~erican 
has an 1ntirest 1n ~axlmirlng the number of sales it *akes through Its own
 
offices, any co.petition tletween travel agents and sales personnel rfflects the
 
fact that the travel agents function as salesmen ana not as independent
 
distributors whO purchase for resale to thtrd part1es.
 

Plaint1ff finally argues that the distInction between sales and conslgn~ent 

transactions has been specifically d1scredited for antitrust purposes 1n 
Continental T.V., Inc. v. GTE Sylvania, Inc., 433 U.S. 36, 55 (1977). In 
Sylvan1a, tne Supreme Court revlrsed its !arller decis10n in United States Y. 
Arnola SChw1nn & Co., 388 U.S. 365 (1967), and held that vertical nonprlce 
restrictioni shOuld be InvalidatEd only under a rule-of-reason standard based on 
demonstrable eccnolic effect. The court's language overruling Sch~1nn 1s 
1n5tructlv~. In Schwinn, the court had ruled that vertical nonprlce restrictions 
should bi held per Si unlawful Mhere a manUfacturer seeks to "restr1ct and 
conf1ne areas or persons with whom an article .ay be traded ift~r the 
manufacturer hilS parted with doa1n1on over 1t.- 388 U.S. at 379, quoted 1n 
Sylvania, 433 U.S. at 44. But the SchllHnn court went on te state that the rule 
of reason governs "hen Uthe ~anufacturer retalns tltle, oo-tn10n, and rlsk with 
respect to the product and the pos1tlon and function of the deal~r In question 
are, 1n fact, lndistt nguishable froN those of an agent Dr salesman of the 
.anuficturer.~ JaB u.s. at 380. quoteQ 1n Sylvanla, 43J U.S. at 44~45. 

Tne Scnw1nn ~ecls1on was the subject of nUMErous scholarly critiques, ~any of 
the~ irguing that 1ts distinctiDn between sale and conslgn~ent transactions was 
essentlally forlaltstlc and unrelated to any relevant economic iMpact. See 
Bak~r, Verttcal Restra1nts 1n Tl~es of Change: From Whtt~ to Sch~lnn to 
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~here?, 44 Antitrust L.J. 537, 537 (1975); Comanor, Vertical Territortal and 
Customer REstrictlons: Wh1te Motor and Its Afterllatt1 J 81 Harv. L. Rev. 1419, 
1422 (19681j McLaren, Territorial" Customer Restrictions, Conslgnraents, 
Suggested Resale Pr1ces and Refusals to Deal, 37 AnUtrust L.J. '37, 14~ (1978) i 
Posner, Antltrust Polley and the Supre~e Court: An AnalysIs Of the Restricted 
Distribution, Horitontal Merger and Potential Co.petition Dec1s1ons, 75 Calum. 
L.	 Rev. 282, 288-89 (19751; Note, Vertical Territorial & Custo~er Restrlct10ns 
In tne franchising Industry, 10 Calum. J. Law &0 Soc. Problems 497, S03 (1974'. 
The Sylvania Court aCknowledged the weight of this collective scnolarShlp, noted 
that Schwtnn proyidea "no analyUcal support" for distinguishing between sale 
and nonsale r €str1ctlons, anU concluded that Sch~lnn'S exemption of nonsale 
transactJOnS from the per se rule was due to the Court's unexplained bellef that 
a complete per se prohiOltton of vertical rt~stralnts would be 11lflexl0llL 433 
U.S. at 54. The Court concluded "that tt7e distinction drawn in Scllwlnn between 
sale and nonsale transactions is not sufficient to justHy the applicaUon of a 
per se rulE! in one s1tuat1an and a rUle of reason in the other." 433 U.S. at 57. 
The Court ttlE'11 concluded that the per 512 rule stated 111 SChwinn for nonprtce 
restrictions, instead of being expanded to include non-sale transactions, should 
be abandoned 1n favor of a reasonableness analySiS. ld. 

Plaintiff'S extrapolations from Sylvania can be su~marited as follows. 
Because sale and nansale transacttons cannot be distinguiShed In terms of 
economic effect, the Suprele Court's continued per 5e condemnation of vertlcal 
price f1xing must be adnered to regardless of the for~ In which American runs 
its dIstribution systeln. This argument 1s certainly not without force. SylVania, 
hOWev!r f concerned tne distinction between conSIgnments and sales as systeMS of 
dIstrIbution, and did not address the contInued vital1ty of the rule that a 
retailEr 1s entltleO to deter~ine th~ prICE at which It sells its own prOducts
directly to consumers e't'en though negotlateCl through outside agents. In thiS 
court's opinion, Sylvania'S logic should not bE txtended to hold per se unlawful 
an agency type sales network si~11ar to those upheld oy other courts, even after 
Sylvania, under the rule of Simpson and 6eneral Electr1c. See, supra, pages 5-6. 

Slgnlficantly, none of the post·Sylvania cases addresstng the continued 
vitality of the Hagency" exceptlon articulated 1n Simpson have consJdered the 
argument put forward oy plaintiff. The only case to discuss Sylvania at all, 
Laurence J. Gordon, Inc. v. Brandt, Inc., 554 F.Supp. 1144 (W.O. Wash. 1983), 
expressly reaffirms the teaching of Simpson that restraints l.posed on 
indlvtduals who 00 not possess entrepreneurial indic1a are outsld! the scope of 
Section 1. Id. at \151. In th1.S case, while plaintiff operates as an independent 
bus1ness Enttty generally, it does not POSSESS suff1cient lnd!pen~ence with 
respect to the sale of airline t1cket$ to quallf~ as a reseller under antitrust 
~nalyslS. The court addS, however, that thiS concluston 15 Dased on the record 
of the preliminary injUnction hearing, and 1s not meant to foreclose a different 
result after i fuller hearing on the merits. 

AlIlerican argues that Sylvania 15 inapt since the Court 1n that case actually 
relaxed t~e rules unaer the Sherman Act With r~gard to vertical restr1ctions, 
and thereby' offers justification for AlIlerican'S prohtOit1on of rebate 
advertis1ng. While there 1s some cogency to thiS argUMent, and scholarly support 
as well, see, e.g., Posner, The Next step 1n the Antitrust Treatment of 
Restricted DIstribution: Per Se Legalitv, 48 U. ChI. L.Re.... 6, 9 (1981>, the 
Court 1n Sylvania expr~5s1y declln!~ to call into questton the 10n9 stand1ng
prohIbition on resale prIce ma1ntenance. 433 U.S. at 51 n.18. That pos1t10n has 
since been reaffirmed. Monsanto Co ..... Spray-Rite Serv1ce Corp., to" s.et. 
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CHA.R CREWS, INC..	 Pla1nUH, "IS CHRISTQFLE SILVER, INC., 
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No. 8\ C 39.40 
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ILLINOIS EASTERN DIVISION
 

Slip Opinion 

february 8, 1982 

OPINION8Y; OEC~ER 

OPINION: HEMORANDUM OPI~lOH ~NO ORDER 

Plalnttff, Char crews, Inc., brought this act10n against defendants, 
Chrlstofle Silver, Inc., Baccarat, Inc., and Rlchard )(aplan, alleging that they 
had violated Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C.S 1, by attempttng to force 
pla1ntiff to €ngage 1n retall prlce ~alntenance. Pend1ng are motlons to Ois~t5S 

frQ~ all defendants. 

Pla1nt1ff alleges the fo11011l1ng 1n 1ts compla1nt, whtCh, for the purposes of 
the instant motions, must be taken as true. Prior to "arch 1981, oefendant 
Baccarat was the sole Unlted States alstrlbutor Of Chrlstoflv s11verplate 
tableware and other 1tems, ~hlch are manufactured In France. AS part of lt$ 
distr1button ~utles, Baccarat prov1deO retailers With lists Of sugge5ted retall 
prices for the S11verplat!.lrglnning 1n "arch of 1980, pla1ntlff began to 
purChase sllverplate frclIl Bilccarat for retail. Plaintiff Is 1n the bustness of 
selling at a discount china, crystal, stainless steel tableware and s11verplate.
Char Crews resold the Chrlstofle s11verplate at a ~1scount of twenty percent 
fro~ the suggested reta1l prices provided by Baccarat. 

Accordlng to the complaint, Baccarat began to put prissure on Char Crewi to 
stop discounting the Chr1stofle Sllverphte. The ·coercIDn" Degan by 
conversations With Baccarat-! sales representatlvr, David Armstrong, and 
escalated to Baccarat's refusal to fill Char Crews' orders on a t1aely basis and 
to proviae the customary display ana proaotional _aterlals to Ch~r Cre~s. Those 
actions were allegedly carried out at the direction of Oefendant ~iplan, liChO was 
an e_ployee of Baccarat and 1n Charge of the d1Strlbutlon of Chrtsta'le 
sllverplate. It seems, however, that through ~arch 1981, Char Crews contInued 
to Sill ChrlstoflQ sllverplate. 

In Harch 1981, Baccarat ceased its tluslness of 5ell1ng Chrhtoflr 51lverplate 
to retatlers, and Chrlstofle 511vrr succeeded 1t as the sole 01str1butor of the 
sllverplate to retallers tn thE Un1ted States. Chr1stofli 51lver was organ1l.!d 
as a corporation in 1958, b\lt It haO rela1netJ dorlant untll 1t undertook the 
di~trtbutlon dut1es 1n Harch 1981. Plalntlff alleges tnat the Change In 
distributors lItas Oane so that the nEW C1lstrlbutor could refuse to sell to 
retatlers whO ~ere offering the sllverplate at dtscount prices. When the change 
~as ~ade, ~aplln reSigned frOM Baccarat and accepted e.ploy~ent w1th Chrlstofle 
SlIver, wher~ he remalned 1n charge of dlstrlbutlng Christofle stlverplate. 

On ~arCh 31, 1981, Char Crews sent an order for 51lverplate to Christon£, 
Sllver. Chr1stofle 51lver refused to fill the order, ~nd in AprU 1981, 
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lnformed Char Crews that Chrlstofle SLIver would no longer sell sllverplate to 
lt. Plaintiff allegt's that that action was ta.ken because 1t refuseO to cOMplY 
with defendants' list of suggested ret.l1 prices. 

PlaintJff claims that the above act5, iffectlvely terminating it as a 
retailer of Christofle s11verplate, were part of a conspiracy betw~~n the 
defendants to engage in unlawful resale price maintenance. Plalntiff ilso 
alleges that othp,r retailers of Christofle silverplate also consplrid with 
defendants to co~mlt the per se violatIons of Section' of th~ Sher~an Act. 

Defendants have filea two separate MotIons to dls~lss th~ claims against 
them, one ~ot1on ftled Oy aefendant Baccarat, and one flled jointly by 
defendants Chrlstofle Silver and ~apl;n. Several issues have been raised by the 
vartous defendants, however, oecause the court finds that one issue 1S 
dl$poslt1v£ as ta ill defendants, only It Will b~ dlscussea oelaN. 

On~ of the basic elements necessary to state a cause of action under Section 
1 is the preSince of a conspiracy. The Seventh Clrt.:uit Court of AppeaJ.s 
recently stated: 

"Section 1 of the Sherman Act prohiblts contracts, combinations, or 
conspiracieS unreasonably rest rain1ng trade or co.merce. The fundatllental 
prerequisite is unlawful conouct by two or More parties pursuant to an 
agreement, ExpliCit or 1",plied. SOlely unilateral conduct, regardless of its 
anU-competitivE' effects, 1S not prOhiOlt£d by Section 1. Rather, to establish 
an unlawful combination or conspiracy, there must be evidence that two or More 
parties have knowingly part1cipated In a common scheMe or des1gn to accomplish 
an anti-co.petltlve purpo~e.~ 

Contractor Utility Sales Cc. v. Certaln-teea PrOducts Corp .• 638 F.2d 1061, 
1074 (7th Cir. 1981). Even i per se antitrust Violation like resale pr1c~ 

la1ntenance 15 not prOhibited 1f done uni~atirilly by the ~anu'acturer or 
Olstributor. See United States v. Cclgiite & Co., 250 U.S. 300 (919). 

The allegations of plaintiff's co_pla1nt fall to adequately set forth that 
elelllent of a Section 1 claim.Initially, the court notiS that the gfneral 
allegatlons that defendants conspired together) either among the_selves or wlth 
ritillers othEr than plaintiff, are not sufficient to state a caus, of acticn. 
General alligations Of conspiracy are MerelV legal conclUSions, and ~ust be 
supportea Ntth allegations Of Some specific facts tending to ShOW the existence 
of the allegid conspiracy. See McClenegnan v. Union StO~K Yards Co. of Omaha, . 
298 f .2d 659 (8th Cir. 1962). rnat rule app11es) Iv~n recognlIlng the liberal 
notice pleading allowed by the rederal Rules of Civil PrOCEdure. S1MS V. Mack 
Truck Carp •• 488 F.SUpp. 592 (E.D.Pi. 1980). 

It is eVident, then, that the only facts alleged 1n plall1t1ff's CCl'Iplitnt, 
which could potentially show a conspiracy to violate th~ inti trust laws, involve 
the ;ctions taken by the named defen~ant5 to el1m1ndt~ Char CriWS as a dealir of 
Chrlstofle sllverplate. However, the facts, as stated, show as a utter of law 
that such a conspiracy was not pOSSible. 

Pla1ntiff allt9~S that Baccarat ~as the sole U.S. distributor of Chr1stofle
 
s11verplate until MarCh 1981. At that tll11e, Baccarat ceased being the
 
Olstr10utcr. NO allegations of the COMplaint suggest that Baccarat had any

further Interaction wlth pla1ntiff after that date, nor do any allegations 
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5ugge5t that Baccarat had any contacts wtth the new dlstrlbutor, Chrlstofle 
SIlver. Plaint1ff has not alleged any facts show1ng any conspiracy between the 
corporate defendants after March 1981. 

Nor could the corporate defendants have conspired before that date either. 
The co~pla1nt states tnat Chrtstofle Silver was a dormant corporatton until it 
undertoo~ the distribution duties on ~irch 1981. Plalnt1ff has sugg~strd no 
way, nor 1S the court able to 111lag1ne one~ that a dorl1ldnt corporatIon, w1thOut 
emplOyQiS Qr business, can conspire with anyone about anything. 

Ftnally, plaintiff's complaint is not saved by thR allegations that the 
indivIdual definoant, Richard ~aplan, conspired With the two corporate 
defendants to violate the antitrust laws. Plaintiff alleged that at all tl~es 

relevant to th 1s SU 1t 7 lir. l<aplan was an employee of aile or the other of the two 
success1ve distributors. It is a general rule of antitrust law that a 
corporation cannot conspire ~lth one of its own employees. H &BEqulpment Ce. 
v. InternatIonal Harvester Co., 577 F.2d 239, 244 (5th elf. 1978). An exception 
to that rul2 Exists for those rare occasions wheri the employee h~s an . 
ind~pendent personal stak.e in aclHev1ng the object of the conspiracy. ld. No 
allegation has oeen ~ade that that is the case here. 

The court therefore holds that plaintiff has failed to state a cause of 
a<:t1cn. The con,lusory allegations that the namQC defendants conspired ~tth 
retail sellers other than plaintiff are Insufficient as a mattir of law. tn 
adoitlon, the facts pleaded in the complaint show that a conspiracy between the 
named defendants was 1mposstble. 

~or the reasons stated abOVE, d£fendants Baccarat, Christofli 511vir, and 
~aplan's Notions to dtSN1ss are grantee. This act10n 1s her~oy ordered 
d 1sll\1ssed. 
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